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GENERAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 
While the 2012-13 financial year was an extremely challenging and busy one, it was also a 
very successful year for SAFA. 

SAFA achieved an overall operating profit before tax totalling $102.1 million in 2012-13 
compared to $14.9 million for the previous year. 

The significant increase in the overall profit from the previous year stemmed mainly from 
SAFA’s insurance business reflecting lower claims valuation expenses and higher than 
expected investment returns on insurance investments managed by Funds SA.  The 
contributions to SAFA’s overall operating profit by its treasury, fleet, and insurance 
businesses for 2012-13 was $21.2 million profit, $13.2 million profit, and $67.7 million profit 
respectively.  This compared to profits of $15.5 million and $17.4 million for its treasury and 
fleet businesses and $18.0 million deficit for its insurance business for the previous year.  

SAFA’s gross funding task for the year was $6.1 billion.  The funding task was met through 
the issue of SAFA Select Lines and short-term issuance.  As well as issuing into existing 
Select Lines, SAFA issued two new Floating Rate Notes (FRNs), one in July 2012 with a 
maturity of 6 December 2013 and one in February 2013 with a maturity of 20 May 2016.  
The new issues were well received. 

As part of its insurance operations, SAFA successfully renewed the government’s 
reinsurance program.  It also successfully negotiated new building indemnity insurance 
arrangements until June 2014, while alternative longer-term arrangements for the South 
Australian Government are considered given the withdrawal from the market of the major 
building insurers.  SAFA also continued to manage property and civil liability claims from 
client agencies and large medical malpractice claims from the Department for Health and 
Ageing.  During the year SAFA also assumed responsibility for the management of 
workers’ rehabilitation claims previously undertaken by the former RESI Corporation 
following its dissolution.   

In managing the State’s motor vehicle fleet, SAFA implemented a number of across 
government budget savings measures that were announced in the 2010 State Budget.  
This included a new across government fleet management and vehicle disposal model 
which culminated in fleet management services being transferred to LeasePlan 
Australia Ltd effective 1 December 2012, and vehicle disposal services being transferred to 
Pickles Auctions Pty Ltd effective 10 October 2012.  These measures will generate savings 
through greater operational efficiencies and lower costs. 
 
In addition to its treasury, insurance and vehicle fleet management functions, SAFA 
continued to provide corporate governance, transaction management and support services 
to the State’s electricity entities.  Playford Capital Pty Ltd became a subsidiary of SAFA on 
1 July 2013.  The company supports the growth of early stage South Australian technology 
companies.  During 2012-13 progress was made in winding down Playford Capital Pty Ltd 
with exit strategies for a number of the portfolio investments being achieved. 

SAFA also continued to administer industry assistance contracts on behalf of the Treasurer 
and the Minister for Finance.  During the year, cumulative recoveries since SAFA assumed 
responsibility for these contracts in 2005, exceeded $70 million and 600 contracts have 
been closed.   
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As well as undertaking its core functions, SAFA continued to focus on the implementation 
of new business systems and improvements in its business processes including in the area 
of records management practices. 

On 13 January 2013, SAFA celebrated its 30th anniversary having commenced operations 
in 1983 following its establishment under the Government Financing Authority Act 1982.  At 
its inception, SAFA’s exclusive function was to act as central borrowing authority on behalf 
of semi-government authorities. 

Today, many years later, SAFA is a very different and diverse organisation that continues 
to play an integral role in managing the State’s finances.  As well as continuing in its role as 
South Australia’s central financing authority, it acts as the Government’s captive insurer 
and manager of the passenger and light commercial fleet. 

SAFA’s success is a testament to the dedication and commitment of past and present 
Advisory Board Members and staff who I acknowledge and sincerely thank for their 
valuable contributions.    

     

Kevin Cantley 
GENERAL MANAGER, SAFA 
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SAFA’S ROLE 
SAFA functions as the central financing authority, captive insurer and manager of the 
passenger and light commercial vehicle fleet operations for the Government of 
South Australia. 

It plays an integral role in the overall management of the State’s finances and risks, 
harnessing economies of scale and relevant expertise to provide a range of treasury, 
insurance and fleet services to public sector clients. 

Treasury services provided by SAFA include raising funds from domestic and international 
financial markets and on-lending the proceeds to clients as well as providing clients with 
investment, portfolio management and financial and risk advisory services. 

Insurance services are provided to clients through SAFA’s insurance division which uses 
the trading name SAICORP.  Insurance services include the provision of across 
government catastrophe reinsurance, claims management, insurance cover and risk 
management advice and assistance to government agencies.  

Vehicle fleet services are provided to clients through SAFA’s fleet division which uses the 
trading name Fleet SA.  Services provided by Fleet SA include policy advice, vehicle 
leasing and disposal, short-term hire, and accident management.  

In addition to these roles, SAFA is also responsible for corporate governance, transaction 
management and support services for the electricity entities and for administration on 
behalf of the Treasurer and the Minister for Finance of contracts associated with a number 
of industry assistance schemes.  SAFA also provides corporate governance and support 
services to its subsidiary Playford Capital Pty Ltd. 

The Treasurer guarantees SAFA’s borrowings and general financial obligations. 

A more detailed description of the services provided by SAFA is contained in the body of 
the report. 

MISSION, OBJECTIVES AND VALUES 

SAFA’s mission is to deliver quality, cost effective financial, insurance and fleet 
management services to the South Australian government.  The primary objectives of 
SAFA’s Strategic Plan are: 

• Deliver high quality services to clients.  
 
• Maintain a culture of continuous improvement in business operations, systems and 

processes. 
 
• Provide an environment that values and supports our staff – our most important asset. 
 
• Deliver value-added services from an across government perspective for the benefit of 

the South Australian community.  

SAFA’s values comprise excellence, ownership, collaboration, recognition and integrity. 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 
 
SAFA recorded an operating profit before tax of $102.1 million, comprising profits of: 

• $21.2 million from its treasury activities; 

• $67.7 million from its insurance activities; and 

• $13.2 million from its fleet activities. 

This compared to an operating profit of $14.9 million for 2011-12.  Figure A below shows a 
five year summary of SAFA’s financial performance. 

Figure A:  Five-year summary of SAFA’s Profit/(Loss) 
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# 2009-10 represents the first year of SAFA and Fleet SA amalgamation.

 
SAFA’s balance sheet was approximately $20.3 billion as at 30 June 2013.  This is an 
increase of approximately $200 million from 30 June 2012.  The increase largely reflects 
higher loans to clients, notably the Treasurer and SA Water. 
 
Total equity increased from $247 million to $310 million reflecting SAFA’s operating result 
after tax for the year, offset by a dividend distribution of $8.2 million to the Treasurer. 
 
The dividend was paid to the Treasurer on 28 June 2013.  SAFA also made an interim tax 
payment of $21.8 million effective 30 June 2013.  Table 1 below shows a five-year 
summary of key SAFA financial information. 

Table 1:  SAFA’s five-year financial summary as at 30 June 

 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 

Total Assets $m* 20 306 20 078 17 566 16 201 11 260

Total Liabilities $m* 19 996 19 831 17 317 15 943 11 070

Retained Earnings $m* 310 247 249 258 190

Operating Profit Before Tax $m 102.1 14.9 59.5 108.7 (45)

Average Number of Employees (FTE**) 84.3 96.3 96.9  96.4#  46.3
*   Amounts reported at market value.          **  Full-time equivalent.            #  Fleet SA amalgamation into SAFA.  

 
The financial performance of SAFA’s treasury, insurance and fleet activities are shown 
separately in this report. 
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TREASURY SERVICES 
SAFA provides a number of treasury services to South Australian public sector clients 
contributing to the responsible management of the State’s finances including: 

• Fundraising; 

• Client Lending; 

• Investment Products and Services;  

• Client Portfolio Management Services; 

• Foreign Exchange and Hedging Services; 

• Financial Advisory Services; and 

• Other Treasury Services. 

Details of SAFA’s treasury services activities for 2012-13 are provided in this section. 

During the 2012-13 financial year, SAFA and its peer issuers in the Australian semi-
government bond market witnessed a significant improvement on the conditions that  
prevailed in the previous 12 months. 

Following the State’s downgrade to AA+ (negative outlook) in May 2012, the State was 
downgraded to AA (stable outlook) in September 2012. This did not cause SAFA any 
issues in accessing markets. 

Improving conditions in financial markets saw the margin between Commonwealth and 
state government bonds narrow during 2012-13 but remain above historical longer run 
levels.  When coupled with reductions in the Reserve Bank of Australia (RBA) cash rate, 
SAFA’s borrowing clients were able to borrow at record low outright levels of interest rates.   

Figure B: SAFA vs Government 5 year Generic Curve 
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Liquidity in bond markets remains tight as semi-government Dealer Panel members restrict 
the amount of liquidity and capital that they are willing to provide to this sector.  However, 
the reduced liquidity is not impacting on the demand for semi-government debt.  Investor 
appetite for SAFA bonds continues to grow, with increased demand from both domestic 
and overseas investors.  SAFA maintains regular contact with its investor base, both 
directly and via the SAFA Dealer Panel. 

FUNDRAISING 

Over 2012-13, SAFA issued a total of $4100 million of Select Line bonds.  SAFA issued 
two new Floating Rate Note (FRN) Select Lines to take advantage of strong demand for 
floating rate bonds. SAFA issued $750 million of a December 2013 FRN and $2 billion of a 
May 2016 FRN.  Both issues were heavily oversubscribed.  SAFA also increased its 2021 
Select Line Bond to have over $2 billion outstanding.  SAFA has committed to markets that 
it will seek to build each Select Line bond to at least $2 billion on issue to ensure sufficient 
secondary market liquidity.  

SAFA’s May 2013 Select Line bond matured in the financial year.   

SAFA’s actual gross funding requirement for 2012-13 was $6.1 billion.   

SAFA also maintained the issuance of Promissory Notes (PNs) through the year. SAFA’s 
issuance of Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) was significantly reduced during 2012-13 due 
to unattractive funding levels relative to domestic issuance.  A mix of PNs and ECP was 
used to fund SAFA’s short-term reinvestment program, up to a limit of $1000 million. 
 
As at 30 June 2013, the volume of PNs outstanding was $2113 million.  The volume of 
ECP outstanding was $11 million Australian denominated and $35 million 
US denominated.  
 
The volume of SAFA’s Select Lines outstanding as at 30 June 2013 was as follows: 

Coupon Maturity $M

BBSW+0.03% 6 December 2013 725

5.25% 6 June 2014 1 778

5.75% 20 April 2015 2 300

BBSW +0.20% 20 May 2016 2 000

5.75% 20 September 2017 2 153

4.75% 6 August 2019 2 015

5.00% 20 May 2021 2 045
BBSW = Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate 
 
In February 2013 SAFA undertook an investor marketing trip to Malaysia, Korea, 
Hong Kong, Japan and Singapore.  Meetings were held with investors in SAFA's Euro 
Commercial Paper and Select Line bonds.  Investors in Asia are increasing their holdings 
of Australian semi-government debt and this trip confirmed that there is strong interest in 
SAFA debt.  

A list of financial institutions who act as dealers on SAFA’s borrowing program is provided 
at Appendix C. 
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CLIENT LENDING 

SAFA partners with clients to provide the financial products and solutions needed to 
manage their financial risks.  It lends funds it raises from financial markets to a number of 
South Australian public sector clients including the Treasurer.  Appendix A includes a list of 
SAFA’s clients. 

SAFA’s clients are classified into three major sectors within the South Australian public 
sector: 

General Government Sector  
 

This sector comprises mainly the Treasurer, who 
borrows on behalf of government departments and 
agencies. 

Public Non-Financial 
Corporations Sector  
 

SAFA’s clients in this category include South 
Australian Water Corporation, Housing SA, 
ForestrySA, Urban Renewal Authority and 
West Beach Trust. 

Public Financial Corporations 
Sector 

SAFA’s major client in this category is HomeStart 
Finance. 

 
As at 30 June 2013, the total of client loans was $15 090 million (face value), an overall 
increase of $895 million from the previous year.  Figure C, illustrates the distribution of 
loans between the three sectors.  Loans to the general government sector, on lent via the 
Treasurer, represent the majority of total loans from SAFA. 
 
Figure C: Client loans by sector as at 30 June 2013  
 

 

 

10



SAFA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 

    

 

 

 

  

 

 

INVESTMENT PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
 
SAFA provides a centralised cash management service to the Treasurer and other public 
sector entities.  SAFA manages the Treasurer’s daily cash position with any surplus funds 
pooled and centrally placed with SAFA.  The Treasurer’s cash balance consists of his own 
daily operating balance and deposits held on behalf of the majority of government agencies 
and authorities.  The Treasurer’s cash balance with SAFA as at 30 June 2013 was 
$3145 million.  The average interest rate earned on the Treasurer’s cash balance with 
SAFA during the year was 3.08% pa.  
 
Agencies that do not place their funds centrally with the Treasurer can utilise SAFA’s suite 
of investment products, namely: 

• an At Call Account, with all funds deposited with SAFA on an overnight basis; 

• a Cash Management Facility (CMF), which is a pooled investment portfolio invested in 
securities of up to six months duration; and 

• a Term Deposit Facility, whereby clients can deposit funds for up to 10 years at fixed 
interest rates. 

At 30 June 2013, the CMF had $900 million (market value) of funds under management.  
Spreads on the fund’s investments in major Australian bank floating rate notes (FRNs) and 
AAA rated Australian residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS) were largely 
unchanged during the year, creating stable returns for clients. 

Over the 2012-13 financial year, the CMF returned 3.61% pa against the RBA cash rate 
benchmark return of 3.18% pa.  The fund has a small percentage of assets invested in 
major bank FRNs and RMBS.  The fund invests the remainder of its assets with a range of 
banks active in the Australian market.  The CMF earned a positive margin over bank bills 
due to the spread earned on FRNs and RMBS.   

CLIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
During 2012-13, SAFA provided a portfolio management service to a number of clients 
notably the Treasurer and the South Australian Water Corporation (SA Water). 

Treasurer 
 
The Treasurer has appointed SAFA to manage the general government sector net debt.  
This debt is managed within two separate portfolios.  One portfolio includes liquid nominal 
rate liabilities and hedge instruments managed against a benchmark comprising SAFA’s 
core funding lines.  The other portfolio includes certain non-liquid nominal long-term 
borrowings (for example, housing agreement borrowings from the Commonwealth) and 
inflation indexed borrowings.  
 
The portfolio comprising liquid debt is managed to a benchmark duration range 
(1.0 to 1.5 years) within risk limits set relative to the benchmark.  Value-at-Risk (VaR) limits 
have also been established for the management of the portfolio.  The cost of funds for the 
liquid debt portfolio is measured on a market value basis relative to that of the policy 
benchmark range.  The market value cost of funds for the liquid debt portfolio is as follows: 
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Current Financial Year and  
5 Year Summary 

Actual 
% pa 

Benchmark  
% pa 

Min            Max 
2012-13 4.36 4.31 4.38 
2008-13* 5.53 5.25 5.88 

*Average for 5 year period 

While SAFA manages the Treasurer’s liquid debt portfolio on a mark-to-market basis 
against a policy benchmark, its charge-out rate to the Treasurer is based upon the average 
historical accounting yield of both of the Treasurer’s portfolios.  This interest cost charging 
mechanism, which is referred to as the Cost of Funds (COF), reduces the volatility that 
would otherwise arise from applying a market value based charge to general government 
sector clients. 

For 2012-13, the average annual COF charged to the Treasurer was 4.28% pa.   

The Treasurer also has a cash loan from SAFA to meet working capital needs.  Interest 
rate on the working capital loan is linked to the RBA cash rate.  The average annual 
interest rate charged on the working capital loan was 3.13% pa. 

SA Water 
 
SAFA provides a comprehensive treasury management service to SA Water including 
management of its $3.5 billion debt portfolio (excluding working capital).  The services 
provided included portfolio management, risk advisory and treasury administration support 
services. 
 
During 2012-13, SAFA’s management of SA Water’s debt portfolio was in accordance with 
SA Water’s policy benchmark portfolio and operating guidelines determined by SA Water. 
 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE HEDGING SERVICES 

SAFA provides a foreign exchange hedging service to public sector clients.  Through this 
service, SAFA centralises the hedging of foreign exchange risks associated with the 
purchase and sale of goods and services by public sector clients.  The hedging of these 
transactions allows clients to manage the impact of currency exchange exposures on their 
budgets.  This service also includes providing advice to public sector clients relating to 
foreign exchange risks.  The value of foreign exchange contracts written during 2012-13 
was $28.5 million. 

FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES  

SAFA provides a comprehensive range of financial and advisory services, and debt 
restructuring advice to public sector clients, including: 

• advice on financial aspects of procurement, including leasing and other structured 
finance solutions; 

• advice on optimum asset and liability management arrangements; 

• strategic risk management advice and analysis; 

• financial risk management reviews; and  
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• development of models and reports for implementing financial and risk management 
solutions. 

OTHER TREASURY SERVICES  

Treasurer’s Loan and Guarantee Arrangements 
 
SAFA is responsible for the management of loan and guarantee arrangements between 
the Treasurer and general government sector agencies and other bodies.  This involves 
monitoring and ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of the loan 
arrangements and establishing and monitoring any guarantee requirements of the 
Treasurer.  
 
SAFA also manages the guarantee fee policy applicable to the debt of public sector entities 
on behalf of the Treasurer. 
 
School Deposit System  
 
During 2012-13, the Department for Education and Child Development (DECD) continued 
to operate a fund for South Australian schools under the South Australian Schools 
Investment Fund scheme, where the department and schools deposit funds. 
 
The funds were invested with SAFA and a competitive interest rate was paid on those 
funds. 

SAFA provided the necessary infrastructure and support services to DECD to administer 
the South Australian Schools Investment Fund scheme.  SAFA recorded and produced 
around 2200 statements for 900 schools each month.   

From 2013-14, the schools will undertake banking services directly with the 
Commonwealth Bank. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
 
SAFA’s treasury activities generated an operating profit before tax of $21.2 million.  The 
profit is largely as a result of a return on its retained earnings (equity) and margins charged 
to clients.   

SAFA’s treasury related balance sheet increased from $19 638 million to $19 954 million 
and its net assets increased by $6.9 million.  SAFA paid a dividend of $8.2 million to the 
Treasurer.  Table 2 overleaf shows a summary of SAFA’s financial performance in relation 
to its treasury function. 
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Table 2: SAFA’s five-year treasury financial summary as at 30 June 

 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09

Assets $m 19 954 19 638 17 118 15 841 10 918

Liabilities $m 19 829 19 520 16 998 15 691 10 771

Equity $m 125 118 120 151 147

Net interest income (NII) $m 27.6 20.9 32.1 23.4 21.8

Other income $m  0 2.0 2.2 1.7 1.6

Administration expense $m 6.4 7.4 7.1 7.4 7.0

Gain on transfer of administrative function $m - - - 2.7 -

Net profit before tax $m 21.2 15.5 27.2 20.3 16.4

Tax $m 6.4 4.7 8.2 5.2 4.9

Net profit after tax $m 14.8 10.8 19.0 15.1 11.5

Dividends paid $m 8.2 12.8 50.0 11.5 10.7

Return on equity % 3.28 4.96 6.50 4.23 5.68

Margin on assets % (NII) * 0.12 0.08 0.14 0.11 0.12

Return on equity $m 4.1 5.9 7.8 6.3 8.3

Net interest income * (excluding return on 
equity) $m 21.9 15.0 24.3 17.1 13.5

*  Net interest income includes realised and unrealised gains/losses on financial instruments and derivatives. 
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INSURANCE SERVICES 
 
This section of the report provides details in relation to the insurance activities undertaken 
by SAFA including: 

• insurance cover to government portfolio groups, agencies and authorities;  

• across government catastrophe reinsurance; and 

• insurance and risk management advice. 

As the captive insurer for the South Australian government, SAFA’s activities include: 

• undertaking and carrying on in South Australia and elsewhere the business of insurers, 
re-insurers and co-insurers of all or any risks of the Crown.  This involves insuring and 
reinsuring the government’s risks in the Australian and international insurance markets; 

• providing advice to the Crown on issues relating to the insurance and management of 
risks of the Crown; and 

• engaging in such other insurance-related activities as are determined by the Treasurer 
to be in the interests of the State. 

 
All of SAFA’s insurance activities are carried out by the Insurance division of SAFA, using 
the name SAICORP, the trading name of the former South Australian Government Captive 
Insurance Corporation.  

SAFA reports to the Minister for Finance on insurance issues. 

INSURANCE COVER TO GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO 
GROUPS, AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES 

Under the government’s insurance and risk management arrangements, SAFA provides 
insurance cover to all government portfolio groups and agencies and to all statutory 
authorities except those specifically exempted by the Treasurer. 

Under agreements entered into with each client agency, the agency meets the first part of 
any loss or claim up to an agreed amount, with SAFA meeting the balance of costs. 

Premium rates charged to client agencies, including the Department for Health and Ageing 
for medical malpractice claims, increased by 10% for the 2012-13 year. 

In addition to the cover provided to client agencies under their agency agreements, SAFA 
facilitated the placement of direct insurances in the commercial insurance market as 
required for agencies with special risks.  It also managed several across government 
policies including government travel insurance, motor fleet insurance (for non-Fleet SA 
vehicles) and fine arts insurance in respect of exhibitions and artworks on loan to clients. 

Throughout the year, SAFA continued to manage property and civil liability claims from 
client agencies and large medical malpractice claims from the Department for Health and 
Ageing.  SAFA also assumed responsibility for the management of claims against RESI 
Corporation which, since 2000, had been administering and managing workers’ asbestos 
exposure claims of former ETSA employees. 

15



SAFA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 

    

 

 

 

  

 

Significant claim matters handled during the year included:  

• claims for alleged sexual abuse in State care, associated with or arising out of the 
Mullighan Commission of Inquiry;  

• defamation claims against the Department for Health and Ageing and SA Police; 

• claims relating to medical malpractice, particularly those relating to injuries sustained at 
birth; and 

• claims in connection with the January 2005 Eyre Peninsula bushfire. 

A total of 613 claims were open as at 30 June 2013, comprising 194 medical malpractice 
claims, 355 general liability claims, 62 property claims and 2 volunteer claims. 

212 new claims were received during the year and 345 claims were finalised.  

From 1 July 2013, SAFA will be managing the below deductible liability claims for the 
Department for Health and Ageing. 

ACROSS GOVERNMENT CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE 

Catastrophe Reinsurance Program 

Although the South Australian government is fundamentally a self-insurer of most of its 
own risks, it has been considered appropriate and desirable that the State’s finances be 
protected against the financial consequences of a catastrophic event, a very large property 
loss or civil liability claim, or a series of large losses or claims in a particular year. 

This protection has been obtained through the placement of a commercial catastrophe 
reinsurance program in the Australian and international insurance markets.  The program 
was successfully renewed at 31 October 2012. 

In relation to the property reinsurance program, the total property premium increased by 
12.5%, comprising an increase in declared values of insured assets of 9.5% plus an 
additional loading of 3%, which is consistent with last year’s renewal.  The program 
deductibles remained unchanged from the 2011-12 program. 

Liability reinsurers continue to maintain a cautious approach to bushfire risk in Australia 
and so detailed presentations were again provided to reinsurers in London on the State’s 
bushfire risk.  The lead reinsurers on the liability program have reduced their participation 
on the primary layer from $100 million to $75 million, across all classes which was driven 
by their concerns and exposure with respect to bushfire risk around Australia.  As a result 
of this change, the structure of participation on the general liability, professional indemnity 
and medical malpractice programs changed.  Because of the reduction in the primary layer 
for medical malpractice to $75 million, an additional $25 million of cover was purchased 
from four insurers.  No additional cover above the $75 million primary layer for directors 
and officers liability was purchased as this level of cover was considered sufficient for this 
particular insurance class.  The total liability premium increased by 10%.   

Details on the South Australian government’s catastrophe reinsurance program for 
2012-13 are provided in Appendix D.  
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Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme 

The reinsurance program also covers risks assumed by the government under the 
indemnity provided by the Treasurer to the Local Government Association Mutual Liability 
Scheme (the Scheme).  The Scheme program is noted on the government’s catastrophe 
reinsurance program.  If a large claim by a member of the Scheme is accepted under the 
Scheme’s program, the claim will be covered by the government’s program in the event the 
amount of the claim exceeds the limit of the Scheme’s program.   

A new indemnity has been negotiated from 1 July 2012 that requires the Scheme to 
purchase higher limits of cover under its commercial reinsurance program and also limits 
the amount of automatic cover available under the indemnity for uninsured risks. 

Building Indemnity Insurance 

Building indemnity insurance covers homeowners from loss or damage resulting from 
non-completion of building work, loss of deposit or breach of statutory warranty if the 
homeowner cannot recover compensation from the builder because of their death, 
disappearance or insolvency.  

To facilitate the availability and affordability of building indemnity insurance to 
homeowners, SAFA has previously provided catastrophe reinsurance protection to Vero 
and Calliden and continues to provide protection to QBE Insurance Group Limited (QBE).  
The current reinsurance arrangement with QBE expired on 30 June 2013. 

Since 2010, private insurers writing building indemnity insurance in South Australia have 
progressively withdrawn from the market.  The largest provider, QBE, also withdrew 
effective 1 July 2013.  As this insurance is required by legislation, SAFA signed a one year 
100% quota share agreement with QBE in June 2013 (with a one year optional extension) 
to enable QBE to continue to provide building indemnity insurance services until a longer 
term solution is developed.  A similar agreement was executed with Calliden effective from 
1 October 2013.  SAFA is working with Consumer and Business Services on the 
development of a longer term solution. 

INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT ADVICE 

SAFA provides advice to the Treasurer and the government to assist in the development of 
national and state policy in connection with insurance related issues and provides risk 
management advice to client agencies in connection with effective management of risk 
across their business.   

Risk management advice and assistance to client agencies occurs in many forms.  
However, assisting clients with the development, implementation and review of risk 
management governance arrangements, policy and procedures, associated tools and 
reporting requirements are an important part of the role. 

The application of risk management principles and processes into strategic and business 
planning, procurement activities and the consideration of risk information as part of 
decision-making remains a priority.  

SAFA has committed to developing a new risk management database to replace the one it 
has provided to a small group of clients since 2007.  The new database (Aon’s 
RiskConsole) will be fully integrated with the new claims and underwriting system being 
implemented. 
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The RiskConsole risk management database will provide far greater functionality and will 
be suitable for a wider group of clients due to the ability to customise the system to reflect 
their business environment and reporting requirements.  

The annual Risk Management Benchmarking program was again coordinated by SAFA 
with sixteen clients participating. 

INSURANCE FUNDS 

SAFA’s insurance function operates through two funds specifically established to 
quarantine SAFA’s insurance activities from its other funding and investment activities.  A 
new fund has also been established effective from 1 July 2013. 

SAICORP Insurance Fund 1 

The normal commercial insurance operations of SAFA are transacted through SAICORP 
Insurance Fund 1 (Fund 1).  This fund is funded by premiums charged to client agencies 
and investment earnings. 
 
At 30 June and 31 December each year, SAFA’s outstanding claims liabilities for Fund 1 
are calculated and this information is then used to determine the solvency reserves (the 
excess of capital over liabilities, including risk margins) and to set a target solvency margin.  
Historically, the solvency target has been calculated by SAFA’s actuary, taking into account 
the minimum capital adequacy standard applied by the Australian Prudential Regulation 
Authority (APRA) to private sector insurers.  Following a review of the method used to 
calculate the target solvency margin, a new, simplified, formula has been developed.  This 
new formula took effect from 1 January 2013. 

SAFA’s target range for solvency reserves is 65% to 135% of the target level of reserves 
calculated using the new formula.  SAFA’s actual solvency margin as at 30 June 2013 was 
101% which is within the target range.  This equates to a surplus of assets over liabilities of 
$130 million or assets being 148% of liabilities. 

SAFA’s insurance investments for Fund 1 are invested in Funds SA’s Growth product. 

SAICORP Insurance Fund 2 

SAICORP Insurance Fund 2 (Fund 2) now only funds liabilities arising from insurable 
incidents that occurred prior to 1 July 1994 that survive the Limitations of Actions Act, 
claims under the building indemnity reinsurance arrangement, SGIC residual claims and 
claims against RESI Corporation.  Non-insurance type liabilities previously met from 
Fund 2 are now managed by the relevant government department and funded separately. 

On an annual basis the liabilities of Fund 2 are revalued and any deficiency arising from 
the valuation is offset by a receivable from the Treasurer.  Conversely any surplus is offset 
by a payable to the Treasurer.  This ensures that Fund 2 records a break-even result as at 
30 June each year. 

SAFA’s insurance investments for Fund 2 are invested in Funds SA’s Conservative 
product. 
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SAICORP Insurance Fund 3 

From 1 July 2013, a new fund, SAICORP Insurance Fund 3 (Fund 3), will be established to 
fund the cost of the new building indemnity insurance arrangements.  Fund 3 will receive 
premium income from QBE and Calliden and pay commissions, claims and other costs 
payable under the new reinsurance arrangements.  Fund 3 is supported by an indemnity 
from the Treasurer and has been established to quarantine the costs arising from building 
indemnity insurance from SAFA’s normal insurance activities. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Fund 1 

For the year ended 30 June 2013, Fund 1 recorded an underwriting profit of $11.4 million 
and an overall operating profit of $67.8 million.  The profit was attributable to lower than 
expected net claims expense of $19.0 million and higher than forecast returns on funds 
invested through Funds SA contributing $56.9 million to profit.  

As at 30 June 2013, Fund 1 had total investments of $377 million and total assets of 
$403 million.  It had outstanding claim liabilities of $273 million and total liabilities of 
$273 million.  Its net assets were $130 million. 

The return on funds invested in Funds SA’s tax exempt multi-sector growth product was 
16.6% pa.  The fund has earned 4.2% pa over the past five years and 7.8% pa over the 
past ten years.  

Funds SA’s Growth (tax exempt) product has a target rate of return of 4.5% pa in excess of 
the rate of inflation (CPI).  There is a reasonable likelihood of earning this target over an 
investment period of eight years or longer.  However, annual returns may be volatile with 
the likelihood that a negative return may be recorded, on average, two years in eight.  The 
probability of a negative return in any one year is 25% pa. 

Table 3 below shows the financial performance of Fund 1.   

 

Table 3: SAFA’s five-year insurance financial summary for Fund 1 as at 30 June 

 
2012-13

$m
2011-12

$m
2010-11

$m
2009-10 

$m 
2008-09

$m

Total Assets 403 383 356 325 301

Total Liabilities 273 300 261 236 258

Net Assets  130 83 95 89 43

Outstanding Claim Liabilities 273 300 260 236 258

Total Investments 377 358 327 296 246

Premium Revenue 39.1 34.8 36.7 35.0 30.2

Reinsurance Expense (9.2) (8.1) (7.5) (7.0) (6.6)

Net Claims (Expense)/Gain (19.0) (51.7) (54.1) 10.3 (42.9)

Underwriting Result 11.4 (24.4) (24.9) 38.6 (19.0)

Investment Revenue 57.4 7.7 35.1 28.4 (41.4)

Profit Before Tax 67.8 (18.0) 9.0 65.9 (61.7)
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Fund 2 
 
For the year ended 30 June 2013, Fund 2 recorded a profit of $9.4 million prior to the 
recognition of a matching but offsetting payable to the Treasurer.  The profit was largely 
attributable to investment income of $5.0 million and gains on claims incurred of 
$4.5 million. 
 
Table 4 below gives details of the financial performance of Fund 2. 
 
Table 4:  SAFA’s five-year insurance financial summary for Fund 2 as at 30 June 
 2012-13

$m

2011-12

$m

2010-11

$m

2009-10 

$m 

2008-09

$m

Total Assets 63 65 76 65 82

Total Liabilities 63 65 76 65 82

Outstanding Claim Liabilities 54.7 64.8 75.4 65.1 82.2

Total Investments 53.3 56.5 52.1 56.9 42.7

Net Claims (Expense)/Gain 4.5 (2.5) (15.5) 2.6 (31.5)

Receivable/(Payable) to Treasurer (9.4) (1.0) 9.5 (5.7) 38.9

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax - - - - -
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FLEET SERVICES 

The South Australian government passenger and light commercial vehicle fleet is owned 
and managed by SAFA.   

SAFA funds the South Australian government fleet vehicles, accessing much lower 
borrowing costs and therefore providing lower lease costs to agencies. 

In addition through its Fleet Division, SAFA is responsible for: 

• Contract management and performance monitoring; 

• Accident management (repairs and claims); 

• Short-term hire pool; and 

• Management and updating of government fleet policies. 

SAFA reports to the Minister for Finance on fleet issues. 

SAFA provides policy advice on issues pertaining to fleet management.  This advice 
generally relates to current motor vehicle industry standards and issues relating to safety 
and strategies for an appropriate fleet mix. 

The purchase of motor vehicles is outside the scope of the State Procurement Act 2004. 
However, where practicable, the South Australian government supports Australian based 
manufacturers, purchasing Australian made passenger vehicles where possible. 

SAFA continues to strengthen its safety policies by working with the Office of Road Safety 
to develop the 2013-16 Road Safety Action Plan.   

SAFA works towards continually improving the safety of the South Australian Government 
fleet where possible by: 

• Extending the South Australian government’s vehicle purchasing policy with regard to 
the Australasian New Car Assessment Program (ANCAP) so that: 

o all passenger vehicles must be 5 star ANCAP; 

o all AWD vehicles (small and medium SUV’s) to be 5 star ANCAP; and 

o all light commercial and traditional 4WD’s to be 5 star ANCAP where 
available cognisant of operational needs. 

• Embracing safety assist technology, and working with vehicle manufacturers to make 
these features available on base model cars ‘unbundled’. 

• Fitting vehicle integrated reversing aids such as cameras and sensors to help drivers 
be aware of what is directly behind a car. 

• Working with other jurisdictions and national fleet buyers to include more safety 
features in vehicles purchased and used in South Australia. 

 
This safety policy continues to provide safer vehicles for government employees and as a 
result flows to safer vehicles being provided for the community when they are sold at the 
end of their service life. 
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During 2012-13 SAFA introduced a Fleet Management Handbook to provide a clear 
understanding of the framework of responsibility in the management of the South 
Australian government fleet. 

VEHICLE LEASING 

Under the government’s fleet management arrangements, SAFA leases vehicles to: 

• South Australian public sector clients; 

• Hospitals and health units incorporated under the SA Health Commission Act; 

• Statutory Authorities (excluding universities), and any other organisation, which is 
approved by the appropriate agency chief executive or their delegates, where the 
organisation complies with the following: 

-  receives a substantial portion of their funds from the South Australian 
government; and 

-  there is a direct line of accountability between the organisation and its Minister. 

The leasing of vehicles to clients includes the costs associated with depreciation, 
borrowing, maintenance, servicing, registration and Comprehensive Third Party insurance, 
and accident management.  Fleet SA is a self-insurer of the South Australian government 
vehicles. 
 
LeasePlan Australia Limited (LeasePlan) was appointed as agent for SAFA effective from 
1 December 2012. 
 
As agent for SAFA, LeasePlan provide fleet management services including: 
 
• fleet distribution (vehicle ordering and acquisition); 

• fleet services (vehicle service, maintenance, repair and breakdown assistance); and 

• fuel management (fuel card management). 

LeasePlan has a local office in Adelaide with a network of account managers that liaise 
with agencies on a regular basis. 

Additionally, LeasePlan provides access to an extensive online web based fleet 
management system to assist agencies to manage their fleets.  The LeasePlan system 
provides access to online vehicle ordering and includes a comprehensive suite of reports. 

VEHICLE DISPOSAL 
 
Pickles Auctions Pty Ltd (Pickles) was appointed as agent for SAFA effective from 
10 October 2012.  

As agent for SAFA, Pickles provide vehicle disposal services including: 

• preparing the vehicle for sale; 

• vehicle rectification; and 

• vehicle sale. 
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Pickles invested in their location at Salisbury Plains by providing an undercover auction 
facility and storage for government vehicles.  Additionally, Pickles provide an online web 
based vehicle disposal system. 

A dedicated South Australian government vehicle disposal auction is held every 
Wednesday in these premises and is also accessible live online through 
www.pickles.com.au 

FLEET STATISTICS  
 
As at 30 June 2013 the size of the fleet was 8112 vehicles which represents a decrease of 
3%  from 2011-12.  For the 2012-13 year 3122 vehicles were purchased for lease at a total 
capital cost of $96 million. 
 
The vehicle long term hire fleet travelled a total of 125.7 million kilometres in 2012-13 at an 
average of 17 886 kilometres per vehicle.  This is a decrease of 3% per vehicle from the 
average of 18 465 kilometres per vehicle in 2011-12.  
 
The total fuel used by the fleet in 2012-13 was 12.7 million litres at an average of 
10.17 litres per 100km, which represents a decrease of approximately 4% on the 
2011-12 average of 10.61 litres per 100km.  
 
The bulk of the fleet were manufactured by General Motors Holden (55%), Toyota (23%) 
and Ford (6%). 
 
For 2012-13 the total vehicles sold was 3628 representing a total value of $62.6 million. 
 
The new across fleet management and vehicle disposal model has resulted in the closing 
of the fleet management and vehicle disposal facilities previously located at Netley. 
 
The remodelled Fleet Division now consists of 21 FTE positions (a reduction from 53.5 FTE 
positions). 
 
In appointing LeasePlan and Pickles, SAFA aims to: 
 
• reduce repair and maintenance costs; 

• reduce administration and overheads; 

• improve services to agencies, including improved systems and reporting; and  

• streamline processes for both fleet management and vehicle disposal. 

LeasePlan and Pickles, as agents, use the established SAFA supplier network that 
includes Motor Vehicle Dealers and service and repairers including the across government 
Crash Repairer Panel Arrangement. 

SAFA continues to work with agencies in achieving their Budget savings targets.  

During 2011-12 a reduction in the administration fee of $4 per vehicle per month was 
delivered to agencies.  During 2012-13 a further reduction of $7 per vehicle per month was 
delivered.  From 1 July 2013 a further $8 reduction will be passed on to agencies. 

The savings measures will continue to generate an annual saving of $2.5 million through 
greater operational efficiencies and lower costs. 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

SAFA’s fleet activities generated an operating profit before tax of $13.2 million.  Its fleet 
related assets and liabilities totalled $268.4 million and $213.1 million respectively, and its 
net assets increased from $46.4 million to $55.3 million in 2012-13.  Table 5 below shows a 
summary of SAFA’s financial performance in relation to its fleet activities. 

Table 5: SAFA’s Fleet SA financial summary as at 30 June 

 
2012-13

$m

2011-12

$m

2010-11

$m

2009-10 

$m 

2008-09

$m

Assets 268.4 263.3 245.1 238.9 241.7

Liabilities  213.1 216.9 210.8 221.0 237.9

Equity  55.3 47.2 34.3 17.9 3.8

Leasing hire revenue  73.2 79.9 82.2 77.8 69.9

Recoveries revenue  27.5 32.3 31.9 30.7 32.4

Motor vehicle expense  32.8 36.9 35.4 34.4 34.2

Depreciation and impairment  43.5 47.6 47.0 48.1 49.3

Net gain on sale of PPE* 1.7 6.8 6.3 7.5 (1.2)

Administration expense  5.8 6.1 5.8 5.9 5.3

Gain on transfer of administrative function - - - 3.8 -
Net profit before tax  13.2 17.4 23.3 22.5 (3.1)

Tax  3.9 5.2 7.0 4.5 0.0

Net profit after tax  9.3 12.2 16.3 18.0 (3.1)
Note - numbers for 2008-09 have been sourced from management reports. 
           *PPE – Plant, Property and Equipment. 
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OTHER BUSINESS SERVICES  
In addition to SAFA’s core activities, SAFA provides the following services for the Minister 
for Finance: 

• management of the Electricity Lessor Corporations;  and 

• Industry Assistance Contract Management. 

Electricity Lessor Corporations  
 
SAFA is responsible for the management of the electricity lessor corporations that own 
South Australia’s generation, transmission and distribution infrastructure.  SAFA’s role 
includes the provision of legal, accounting, financial, corporate governance and transaction 
management services. 
 
The electricity lessor corporations are: 
 
• Generation Lessor Corporation; 

• Transmission Lessor Corporation; and 

• Distribution Lessor Corporation. 
 
During 2012-13, SAFA continued to monitor compliance with the contractual obligations of 
all parties to the transaction documents for the privatisation of the State’s electricity 
infrastructure.  Further detailed information on the operations of the above corporations is 
available from their annual reports. 
 
In the past, SAFA provided services to RESI Corporation (formerly ETSA Corporation).  
During 2012-13 RESI Corporation was dissolved and SAFA assumed responsibility for the 
management of asbestos and workers’ rehabilitation claims previously undertaken by RESI 
Corporation. 
 
Industry Assistance Contract Management  
 
As at 30 June 2013 SAFA administered 202 agreements to provide financial assistance to 
industry within South Australia on behalf of the Minister for Finance, with a total value of 
$230 million.  Assistance has been provided from the following funds or through individual 
submissions:  
 
• the Industry Investment Attraction Fund (IIAF); 

• the Structural Adjustment Fund for South Australia (SAFSA); 

• the Strategic Industry Support Fund (SISF); 

• the Innovation and Investment Fund for South Australia (IIFSA); 

• the Regional Development Infrastructure Fund (RDIF); 

• the South Australia Innovation and Investment Fund (SAIIF); and 

• the Small Business Development Fund (SBDF). 
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SAFA works closely with the Department of Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade, Resources 
and Energy, Department of Primary Industries and Regions, the Commonwealth 
Government, and other relevant departments in managing the industry assistance 
contracts.  SAFA is responsible for assessing performance against contract milestones and 
taking appropriate actions on behalf of the Minister for Finance with respect to payments, 
repayments, and variations to contractual terms. 
 
The decision has been taken to cease funding to SAFA for administration of industry 
assistance contracts from 1 July 2014, consistent with targeted budget savings for the 
Department of Treasury and Finance.  SAFA is planning for the orderly transfer of residual 
agreements to relevant agencies while it continues to negotiate agreements under existing 
funding initiatives, focussing on the wind-down of contracts. 
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SUBSIDIARIES 
 

PLAYFORD CAPITAL PTY LTD 

The Playford Centre, through its subsidiary Playford Capital Pty Ltd (Playford), was a State 
Government owned organisation that supported the growth of early stage South Australian 
technology companies.   

Playford invested seed capital from its own funds as well as funds provided by the 
Commonwealth Government through its Innovation Investment Follow-on Fund (IIFF), for 
investment in a select group of Playford Capital investees.  Playford Capital manages the 
PC IIFF Trust in accordance with a Trust Deed.  

In 2010, the State Government announced the orderly wind down of Playford.   

Following the proclamation of the Public Corporations (Playford Centre) Dissolution and 
Revocation Regulations 2012, Playford Centre was dissolved with its assets, rights and 
liabilities being transferred to SAFA. 

Playford Capital became a subsidiary of SAFA as a result of the above proclamation, with 
effect from 1 July 2012, with SAFA providing financial, accounting and corporate 
governance services to support the company’s operations from this date.  

The most significant task in the wind down of Playford is the exit of its active investments 
by the target date of 31 December 2013.   

During 2012-13, Playford was successful in exiting investments in two companies resulting 
in a net return of $587 000.  A further two investments held by Playford were sold post 
30 June 2013. 

Strategies are in place for the exit of Playford’s remaining active investments.  Any 
investments not sold by 31 December 2013 will be transferred to SAFA. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Playford made a loss of $799 000 for the 2012-13 financial year, mainly as a result of the 
write down in the valuation of its investments to $487 000.   

As at 30 June 2013, Playford had net assets of $6.8 million, comprising mostly of a 
$6.4 million deposit with the Treasurer of South Australia. 

The 2012-13 financial statements of Playford Capital are attached at Appendix F.  A 
separate annual report for Playford Capital has not been produced. 

As mentioned above, Playford Capital is manager of the Commonwealth’s PC IIFF Trust 
(the Trust). 

The 2012-13 financial statements of the Trust are not included in SAFA’s 2012-13 Annual 
Report, but have been provided to the Commonwealth Government as required under the 
terms of the Trust Deed. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
STRUCTURE AND PRACTICES 
This section of the report outlines SAFA’s governance practices, in particular, SAFA’s 
governing legislation, matters associated with SAFA’s Advisory Board and SAFA’s control 
environment, all of which are comprehensively documented in SAFA’s Policy Manual. 

GOVERNING LEGISLATION  

SAFA is a statutory authority constituted as the Under Treasurer under the Government 
Financing Authority Act 1982 (SAFA’s Act) and commenced operations in January 1983.   

SAFA is subject to the control and direction of the Treasurer and its borrowings and 
general financial obligations are guaranteed by the Treasurer. 

The Treasurer delegated (in December 2011) responsibility for SAFA’s insurance and fleet 
operations to the Minister for Finance in accordance with Section 9 of the Administrative 
Arrangements Act, 1994. 

Notwithstanding the transfer of responsibilities to the Minister for Finance of these 
functions, the Treasurer retains overall responsibility for the functions. 
 
Appendix E contains a list of relevant legislation associated with SAFA. 
 
SAFA ADVISORY BOARD 
 
An Advisory Board established in June 1995 advises the Treasurer, the 
Minister for Finance and the Under Treasurer with regard to SAFA’s operations. 
 
In controlling the operations of SAFA, the Under Treasurer must consider advice given to 
him by the SAFA Advisory Board (Advisory Board). 
 
The Advisory Board can comprise up to seven members and its composition is determined 
according to provisions in SAFA’s Act.  

An Audit and Risk Management Committee (previously the Audit Committee) has also 
been established to assist the Advisory Board in monitoring the soundness of operations 
within SAFA.  More detailed information regarding the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee is provided in the Internal Controls and Audit section later in this report. 

Figure D overleaf illustrates the relationship between the key parties associated with the 
operations of SAFA. 
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Figure D: Relationship between the Treasurer, Minister for Finance, SAFA and Advisory Board 
 
 

TREASURER 
(Minister for Finance)

ADVISORY BOARD

AUDIT AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

INTERNAL AUDIT

UNDER TREASURER
(IN HIS CAPACITY AS THE 

AUTHORITY)

GENERAL MANAGER, SAFA

Direct Relationship

Indirect Relationship
 

 

Role and Responsibility 

The Advisory Board has responsibility for providing advice to the Under Treasurer, 
Minister for Finance, and the Treasurer on issues pertaining to SAFA’s operations.  The 
Advisory Board has two functions under SAFA’s Act: 

(i) at the request of the Treasurer or the Under Treasurer it will provide advice to the 
Treasurer (in writing) or the Under Treasurer (orally or in writing) on any question 
relating to the exercise by SAFA of its powers, functions or duties under SAFA’s 
Act; and 

(ii) if it believes it should provide advice to the Treasurer or the Under Treasurer on any 
matter relating to the exercise by SAFA of its powers, functions or duties under 
SAFA’s Act, it may provide that advice even though a special request has not been 
made. 

Should any advice given to the Under Treasurer, Minister for Finance, or the Treasurer not 
be followed, it must be noted in SAFA’s Annual Report, together with sufficient reasoning 
as to why it was not followed.  

There were no occurrences of such advice in 2012-13. 

Throughout the year, the Advisory Board received and reviewed: 

• monthly reports from the General Manager summarising operational and financial 
matters; 

• regular reports on SAFA’s debt and asset management activities, portfolio management 
assignments, financial statements, insurance operations, fleet operations, other business 
services, progress against its business plan and matters related to credit risk; and 

• other policy-related papers. 
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Membership 

SAFA’s Act specifies that the Advisory Board must consist of not less than five and not 
more than seven members, one of which must be employed by a semi-government 
authority and one of which must have insurance expertise. 

As at 30 June 2013, the Advisory Board comprised the following members: 

Mr Brett Rowse Under Treasurer, Presiding Member (member since December 
2010) 

Ms Juliet Brown Company Director (member since June 2008) 

Mr Mark Day Company Director (member since June 2012) 

Mr Leonard Foster Chairman Commonwealth Government’s Bush Fire Cooperative 
Research Centre (member since June 2002) 

Mr Claude Long former General Manager, South Australia and Northern Territory, 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia (member since June 2002) 

Ms Yvonne Sneddon Company Director (member since June 2000) 
 

Ms Anne Westley Manager, Governance Services, SA Water (member since April 
2011) 

 
Deputy members: 
 
Mr Peter Mendo former Chief Financial Officer, SA Water (deputy member to Ms 

Anne Westley since April 2011) 

Mr Garry Goddard Deputy Under Treasurer (deputy member to the Under Treasurer 
since April 2011) 

 

Appointment and Retirement of Advisory Board Members 

Advisory Board members (excluding the Under Treasurer as Presiding Member) are 
appointed by the Governor of South Australia for a term (of up to three years) as defined in 
the instrument of appointment.  Members are eligible for re-appointment at the end of that 
term. 
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Details of Advisory Board members’ attendance for 2012-13 are as follows: 

Advisory Board Member Meetings Eligible to 
Attend 

Meetings 
Attended 

Term Expiry Date

Mr Brett Rowse 6 5 Ex-officio

Ms Juliet Brown 6 6 8 June 2014

Mr Mark Day 6 5 8 June 2015

Mr Leonard Foster 6 4 8 June 2015

Mr Claude Long 6 5 8 June 2014

Ms Yvonne Sneddon 6 6 8 June 2015

Ms Anne Westley 6 6 7 April 2014

Mr Peter Mendo dm 0 0 7 April 2014

Mr Garry Goddard dm 1 1 7 April 2014
dm - deputy member                   
 

Remuneration 
 
During 2012-13, five appointed members of the Advisory Board were entitled to receive 
allowances and expenses.  Total remuneration paid for the year was $183 447.  Members 
who are permanently employed under the Public Sector Act 2009, or on similar terms, are 
not entitled to remuneration.  
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
Ms Yvonne Sneddon declared a conflict of interest as an investor in Paragon Equity. 
 
Ms Juliet Brown declared she no longer had a conflict of interest associated with the 
Wangary bushfire matter due to her resignation from the RAA Insurance Limited Board. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS AND AUDIT 
 
With SAFA’s continuing commitment to quality, its attitude to risks remains so as to 
undertake its range of business functions in a risk neutral manner and to protect the 
interests of its owner and clients. 
 
SAFA is exposed to a range of operational and financial risks in the performance of its 
responsibilities.  The management of these risks is central to the control framework and is 
enshrined in the form of SAFA’s Policy Manual.  The Policy Manual defines the roles, 
responsibilities and obligations of all parties associated with SAFA.  SAFA complies with 
the prudential framework of the Policy Manual as ratified by the Advisory Board, noted by 
the Minister for Finance, and approved by the Treasurer.   

Through a combination of internal and external resources, SAFA’s business activities are 
subject to extensive monitoring through the application of a conservative risk management 
framework.  SAFA is reviewed by a combination of the Auditor-General of South Australia, 
the Audit and Risk Management Committee, an outsourced internal audit function and an 
in-house Compliance section. 
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The framework adopted by SAFA in assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
control environment operates to ensure SAFA has a robust  array of control systems for the 
management of identifiable risks. 

Auditor-General 

The Auditor-General provides an independent review of SAFA’s financial statements and 
the operating environment.  The Auditor-General reports his findings to the 
Under Treasurer and the South Australian Parliament annually.  Officers from the 
Auditor-General’s Department attend the meetings of the SAFA Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. 

Audit and Risk Management Committee 

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is a sub-committee of the full Advisory Board.  
The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists of four members and meets regularly 
with SAFA management, Internal Audit, Compliance section and staff from the 
Auditor-General’s Department.  The Audit and Risk Management Committee met six times 
during 2012-13.  The Committee members for 2012-13 were Ms Yvonne Sneddon (Chair), 
Mr Peter Mendo and Mr Leonard Foster.  Ms Juliet Brown was appointed as the fourth 
member in May 2013. 

The primary responsibility of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is to assist the 
Under Treasurer and the Advisory Board to determine the soundness of operating 
practices in SAFA.  Outcomes from meetings of the Committee are reported by the 
Committee Chair at the next meeting of the full Advisory Board. 

Internal Audit 

SAFA has an independent internal audit function that is responsible for updating SAFA’s 
three year rolling internal audit plan, which is reviewed annually following a risk 
assessment with SAFA management.  Internal Audit executes the audit projects in the plan 
and reports directly to the Audit and Risk Management Committee to ensure independence 
is maintained. 

Ernst & Young provided the internal audit services to SAFA in 2012-13.  Ernst & Young 
was re-appointed in 2011-12 as SAFA’s internal auditor for another 3 years (plus two 
one year extension options).   

The outsourcing arrangement for internal audit permits SAFA to have its operations audited 
to industry benchmarks by staff with exposure to a wide range of other industry 
practitioners.  This assists SAFA to ensure its operations remain at levels consistent with 
industry best practice.  To ensure appropriate audit coverage and to maximise the 
effectiveness and efficiency of review processes in providing value for money, all work 
programs are coordinated between Internal Audit, the Auditor-General and SAFA’s 
in-house Compliance section. 

Compliance 

The final aspect of the control management framework is provided by SAFA’s in-house 
Compliance section which operates under an audit compliance program developed by 
Internal Audit. 
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The Compliance section performs regular reviews of the operating effectiveness of controls 
and activities across SAFA throughout the year based on the program.  Assessment 
results are regularly reported by the Compliance section to management, Internal Audit, 
and the Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Internal Audit is responsible for SAFA’s audit compliance program including the review and 
update (where necessary) of the program on an annual basis.  Internal Audit also reviews 
all the work performed by the Compliance section to ensure the program scope is followed, 
results are appropriately reported and whether corrective actions are taken for issues 
raised. 

The Compliance section also monitors recommendations arising from audit findings of the 
Auditor-General and Internal Audit.  The Compliance section undertakes verification 
activities in order to assess whether actions by management are consistent with 
recommendations and address the related issues raised.  Implementation progress reports 
for recommendations are provided to the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
throughout the year.  

The Compliance section also participates in consultative committees and working parties to 
advise or address corporate wide risk management projects and issues. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 
In conducting its business activities, SAFA is exposed to a number of risks that need to be 
identified and managed.  SAFA’s Act requires SAFA to conduct its business affairs in 
accordance with proper principles of financial management, and having regard to the 
nature of the captive insurance function, with a view to avoiding a loss.  SAFA aims to 
undertake its treasury and insurance activities in a risk neutral manner and to protect the 
interests of its owner and clients. 

To this end, SAFA has a number of risk management practices in place including policies, 
procedures and limits, which are monitored closely by internal and external parties. A 
number of breaches to limits occurred during the year, the majority as a result of market 
movement, and were followed by immediate remedial action.  All breaches were reported 
to the Treasurer, Under Treasurer and the Advisory Board and included the following: 

• 4 breaches to the Value-at-Risk (VaR) limits; 

• 4 breaches to the credit limits;  

• 3 maturity bucket limit breaches; and 

• a breach to the Individual Dealer Transaction Limit.  

There was also a breach to the Cash Management Facility whereby assets dipped below 
the 25% limit requirement, which was reported to executive management consistent with 
policy. 

Interest Rate Risk 

SAFA’s debt management framework encompasses a variety of methods to measure and 
manage interest rate risk, including basis point sensitivity, duration/modified duration, and 
VaR interest rate risk limits for SAFA’s portfolios.  These limits are approved by the 
Under Treasurer and Treasurer, while limits on interest rate risk for portfolios managed on 
behalf of clients are set in consultation with the clients. 

The key portfolio on SAFA’s balance sheet used to fund loans to clients (Funding Portfolio) 
holds liabilities, assets and hedging instruments (including derivatives) and is run on a 
basis where mismatches between assets and liabilities are managed within tight 
parameters as shown in Table 6 below. 

Table 6:  SAFA’s key interest rate risk limits and guidelines for the Funding Portfolio 
 LIMIT INTERNAL GUIDELINES 
 Primary Level 

Outright and Yield 
Curve Risk $A (1) 

Primary Level 
Outright and 
Yield Curve 
Risk $A (1)

Secondary 
Level Basis 
Risk $A (1) 

Floating (<190 days) ±10 000 ±5 000 500 000 

Short (190 days to <2 years) ±10 000 ±5 000 500 000 

Medium (2 years to <6 years) ±10 000 ±5 000 500 000 

Long (6 years and longer) ±10 000 ±5 000 500 000 

Net Outright Risk ±10 000 ±5 000 - 
(1) Basis Point Sensitivity (PV01) 
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As well as the risk parameters depicted in the table above, the Funding Portfolio has a VaR 
limit of $750 000. 

As outlined under the Client Portfolio Management Services section in this report, debt for 
the Treasurer residing on SAFA’s balance sheet is managed in two separate portfolios.   

o One portfolio includes liquid nominal rate liabilities and hedge instruments and is 
managed against a benchmark with a duration range of 1 to 1.5 years.  A VaR limit 
also applies which equates to a 95% confidence that the Managed portfolio does 
not under-perform the benchmark by 50 basis points.   

o The second portfolio principally comprises housing agreement borrowings from the 
Commonwealth and inflation indexed borrowings. 

Credit Risk 

To minimise the potential for credit losses, SAFA’s investments must comply with stringent 
credit guidelines.  These guidelines, which have been developed with reference to credit 
ratings assigned by Standard & Poor’s Credit Rating agency, permit SAFA to deal only with 
counterparties who possess a strong capacity to meet their financial commitments, 
including the timely payment of principal and interest (refer to Figure E).  

Figure E: SAFA's credit exposure grouped by credit rating at 30 June 2013 
 

 
 

SAFA measures credit exposure of direct investments at face value, and the credit 
exposure of derivative transactions using a mark-to-market methodology that includes an 
additional factor to cover potential future adverse market movements.  Credit exposure is 
monitored on a daily basis and reported to relevant managers in SAFA each day.  No credit 
losses were incurred by SAFA over the year, reflecting its prudent and conservative credit 
risk policy and management practices.   
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Liquidity Risk 

In order to mitigate liquidity risk, SAFA has in place a framework, which includes the use of 
short-term liquidity limits and guidelines.  The limits require SAFA to hold a base level of 
liquidity or sufficient liquid assets to meet debt maturities for the next 60 days.  Liquid 
assets comprise cash, term cash, term deposits (less than 60 days), discount securities, 
and other highly marketable securities including Commonwealth and semi-government 
bonds.  

During 2012-13, SAFA’s liquidity significantly exceeded the levels required by the limits 
and averaged $1262 million. 

Funding Risk 

SAFA’s funding risk is a medium-term risk associated with SAFA not being able to raise 
funds when required, or raising funds at a substantially higher cost.  Guidelines are set to 
ensure that SAFA is not exposed to a significant refinancing risk in any financial year.  
SAFA’s funding guidelines require that SAFA has a Select Line of a maturity greater than 
four years.  SAFA’s longest Select Line is a May 2021 maturity. 

Currency Risk 

SAFA avoids currency risk by hedging its exposures relating to foreign currency 
borrowings.  This is achieved through currency swaps, or by purchasing matching foreign 
currency assets.  SAFA had a very small currency exposure during 2012-13 (A$199 000). 

Insurance Risk 

SAFA faces a number of risks in undertaking its insurance function.  These risks are 
predominantly financial in nature and relate to the sufficiency of premium revenue to meet 
the cost of claims incurred.  These risks are managed through sound business practices 
relating to the premium setting process, investment of surplus funds and the allocation of 
capital to cover unforeseen circumstances.  The risks are further mitigated by the 
reinsuring of risks above a set level in the Australian and international insurance market. 

SAFA faces credit risk relating to recoveries from its reinsurers.  SAFA limits its 
reinsurance to entities that have a Standard & Poor’s insurer financial strength credit rating 
of A- or higher.  

Fleet Risk 
 
SAFA’s risks in relation to the centralised management of the South Australian government 
fleet are predominantly related to residual value and interest rate risk associated with the 
purchasing, leasing and the disposal of vehicles.  A major risk is concentration of the 
passenger fleet mix in Australian made vehicles, in particular the residual value that may 
be achieved at auction.  Any reduction in sales value will ultimately impact residual values 
and increase lease rates. 
 
Residual value and interest rate setting are promulgated through a Fleet Executive 
Governance Group and are approved and reviewed on a quarterly basis.  Mitigation 
strategies against residual risk include the use of industry standards of Redbook and 
Glass’s Guide, monitoring of sales trends, and inputs from LeasePlan and Pickles national 
data. 
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Mitigation of risk in relation to the appointment of agents for fleet management and vehicle 
disposal services includes the adoption of the internal compliance model that currently 
exists within SAFA and sound business practices, including strong contract management 
and monitoring. 

Operational Risk 

SAFA has established comprehensive policies for managing operational risk, including 
reporting requirements, delegated authorities and a robust internal control framework.  
SAFA also has in place an active operations recovery plan that is monitored and tested 
regularly to ensure its business operations can be recovered relatively quickly in the event 
of a major disruption.  SAFA’s audit and compliance function assists in managing SAFA 
operational risk. 

Legal Risk 

Legal risks exist in all of SAFA’s activities, particularly in funding transactions, derivative 
transactions, investment transactions and client lending and deposit transactions.  They 
are limited and managed through appropriate policies, procedures and processes. 
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AND 
STAFF 
OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE 

SAFA’s operations are managed by the General Manager who reports directly to the 
Under Treasurer.   

A number of committees have also been established to assist the General Manager in 
fulfilling SAFA’s objectives and responsibilities on a day-to-day basis.  They include the: 

• Asset and Liability Management Committee;  

• Credit Committee; 

• Fleet SA Executive Governance Group; and 

• Across Government Fleet Management Reference Group.   

 Figure F illustrates the current organisational structure of SAFA. 

Figure F:  SAFA’s organisational structure as at 30 June 2013 
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STAFFING 

SAFA is resourced by staff employed by the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) 
that are assigned to SAFA.  Permanent staff are employed by the South Australian 
government under the Public Sector Act 2009.  Some specialist staff are also employed on 
an untenured contract basis. 

At 30 June 2013, 93 staff (80.5 FTEs) were employed directly in SAFA’s operations, of 
whom 17 worked on a part-time basis.  SAFA’s FTE average for the year was 84.3 staff.  
Table 7 below provides details on the composition of staff within SAFA.  A staff list is 
provided at Appendix B.  
 
Table 7:  SAFA staff profile as at 30 June 2013  

 % of Total FTE 
(1) 

Number of 
Part Time 

% of FTE at 
Executive Level 

% of FTE at 
Senior Level 

(ASO6) (2) 

Female 45 % 15 1 % 15 % 

Male 55 % 2 6 % 19 % 

Total 100 % 17 7 % 34 % 

(1)  FTE – Full-time equivalent. 
(2)  Includes staff and contractors at levels ASO6 and above excluding executive positions.  

A number of contractors and specialists were also employed to supplement SAFA’s 
expertise in various areas.   

SAFA staff are bound by the South Australian public sector’s enterprise bargaining 
framework.  It is a party to the across government wages parity enterprise bargaining 
agreement for the determination of salaries. 

Performance reviews, consistent with the DTF’s Performance Management Program, are 
conducted annually and help to provide staff with work performance improvement, personal 
development and direction in career planning. 

SAFA is supportive of flexible working arrangements, recognising the need for balance 
between work and home life.  SAFA supports equal opportunity in employment and selects 
staff on the basis of merit for all positions within the organisation. 

Through the DTF’s Safety Management Plan, SAFA is committed to the continuous 
improvement in the health, safety and welfare of its employees.  The plan aligns with 
WorkCover Performance Standards for self-insurers and aims to facilitate a standard of 
excellence in work health and safety (WH&S) issues in the areas of prevention, 
rehabilitation and claims management. 

SAFA has integrated WH&S and Injury Management into its management systems and half 
yearly safety audits are conducted to highlight any workplace hazards or maintenance work 
required.  There were no major incidents reported throughout 2012-13.  

During the year, a number of SAFA staff participated in various initiatives of DTF including 
the flu vaccination program, voluntary blood donation drives, and the ‘Women in Treasury’ 
program.  Staff also participated in SAFA’s leadership quality initiatives including the 
Professional Management Program offered by the University of Adelaide.  Staff are 
required to comply with the government’s Code of Ethics for South Australian public sector 
employees and the codes of ethics relevant to professional associations. 
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Professional Skills and Expertise 

The expertise of SAFA staff is derived from a variety of tertiary and vocational 
backgrounds.  SAFA staff possess qualifications in the following fields: 

• Arts; 
• Automotive engineering and crash repair industry; 
• Economics, Business, Commerce, Accountancy, Audit, Insurance and Insolvency; 
• Finance and Investment, Financial Markets, and Superannuation Management; 
• Law and Legal Practice;  
• Management and Public Sector Management; 
• Office Management and Commercial Studies; and 
• Science (mathematics), Computing, and Information Technology. 
 
SAFA encourages the ongoing commitment to education with support being provided 
through paid study leave and the reimbursement of tuition fees following successful 
completion of work related subjects. 
 
Professional Development 

A number of staff continue their professional development through affiliations with various 
professional associations through memberships, fellowships and accreditations.  These 
associations include: 

• Australian and New Zealand Institute of Insurance and Finance; 
• Australian Financial Markets Association; 
• Australian Fleet Managers Association;  
• Australia Insurance Law Association;  
• CPA Australia Limited; 
• Finance and Treasury Association Limited; 
• Financial Services Institute of Australia; 
• Institute of Automotive and Mechanical Engineers; 
• Institute of Chartered Accountants;  
• Institute of Internal Auditors; and 
• Risk Management Institution of Australasia. 
 
Training 
 
SAFA maintained a strong commitment to staff training and development during the year 
sustained by an appropriate budget allocation.  Staff training needs are assessed regularly 
and all personnel are encouraged to attend work-related courses, seminars, and in-house 
or offsite workshops.   
 
During the year there was a focus on staff communication, records management, change 
management and systems training.  Staff attended workshops aimed at establishing goals 
and expectations within the organisation, review performance and development, and 
encourage open, honest and constructive conversations.  
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2013

Note

2013
$m

2012
$m

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 2,033.4     2,093.8        
Assets Held for Sale 6 5.6            9.2               
Investments 7 2,075.8     1,971.8        
Loans 8 15,598.3   14,490.1      
Property, Plant and Equipment 9 195.0        200.1           
Intangible Assets 10 0.8            0.4               
Derivatives Receivable 11 336.1        1,251.4        
Other Assets 12 60.3          60.9             

Total Assets 20,305.3   20,077.7      

Liabilities

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 13 6,031.2     6,464.2        
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 14 13,535.0   12,067.1      
Outstanding Claims 15 327.3        364.7           
Derivatives Payable 16 77.7          928.0           
Other Liabilities 17 24.1          7.0               

Total Liabilities 19,995.3   19,831.0      

NET ASSETS 310.0        246.7           

Equity

Retained Earnings 310.0        246.7           

TOTAL EQUITY 310.0        246.7           

Total equity is attributable to the SA Government as owner

Contingent Assets and Liabilities 22
Unrecognised Contractual Commitments 28
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Note
2013

$m
2012

$m

Income
Revenue
Interest Revenue 18 1,253.4     1,307.4     
Less Interest Expense 18 1,239.2     1,282.0     
Net Interest Revenue 14.2          25.4          

Insurance Premium 18 42.2          39.9          
Leasing and Hire 18 73.2          79.9          
Recoveries 18 23.6          34.6          
Other 18 3.0            4.6            

Total Revenue 156.2        184.4        

Gain on transfer of Administrative Functions 4 1.4            -            

Other Gains/(Losses)
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives 19 68.2          (6.2)
Net Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 19 1.7            6.8            
Total Other Gains 69.9          0.6            

Total Income 227.5        185.0        

Expenses
Depreciation and Impairment 20 43.5          47.6          
Insurance Claims 20 16.6          62.0          
Motor Vehicle 20 29.8          35.6          
Outward Reinsurance 20 9.2            8.1            
Operating 20 26.3          16.8          

Total Expense 125.4        170.1        

Profit before income tax equivalents 102.1        14.9          

Income Tax Equivalent Expense with SA Government 30.6          4.5            

Profit after income tax equivalents 71.5          10.4          

Other Comprehensive Income -            -            

Total comprehensive result 71.5          10.4          

The profit after income tax equivalent and total comprehensive result are attributable
to the SA Government as owner
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Note $m

Balance at 30 June 2011 249.1                    

Profit after income tax for 2011-12 2(q) 10.4                      

Total comprehensive result for 2011-12 10.4                      

Transactions with SA Government as owner
Dividends paid (12.8)

Balance at 30 June 2012 246.7                    

Profit after income tax for 2012-13 2(q) 71.5                      

Total comprehensive result for 2012-13 71.5                      

Transactions with SA Government as owner
Dividends paid (8.2)

Balance at 30 June 2013 310.0                    

All changes in equity are attributable to the SA Government as owner

Retained 
Earnings
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Note

2013
$m

 2012
$m 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:

Interest received 1,002.0        920.8          
Derivatives net interest received/(paid) 54.2             54.3            
Insurance Premiums received 42.9             35.2            
Leasing and Motor Vehicle receipts 115.5           119.5          
Recoveries 1.1               5.4              
Direct Insurance Placement 6.4               9.7              
Stamp duty received from agencies 4.7               4.6              
Other receipts 17.2             (38.8)
Commissions 1.1               1.6              
GST recovered from the ATO 15.4             13.3            
Indemnity from Treasurer 7.0               7.0              
Net GST Received relating to Investing/Financing Activities (0.4) 5.8              

Payments for:
Interest paid (975.2) (954.8)
Insurance Claims paid (52.9) (31.2)
Motor Vehicle costs (35.2) (38.4)
Outwards reinsurance premium paid (10.0) (8.4)
Direct Insurance Placement (8.4) (10.0)
Stamp duty paid to Revenue SA (4.7) (4.2)
Operating expenses paid (20.2) (22.6)
GST paid to the ATO (20.8) (17.5)
Income Tax Equivalent (TER) paid (21.8) (3.4)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 23.2 117.9           47.9            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from Client Loans (1,133.7) (1,781.8)
Purchase of Investments (24,172.5) (23,993.8)
Proceeds from Investments 24,341.5      23,262.2     
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (100.6) (92.2)
Purchase of Intangible Assets (0.6) (0.4)
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 57.8             59.5            
Cash Received from Transferred Functions 1.5               -              

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,006.6) (2,546.5)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from Borrowings 1,135.3        2,481.3       
Dividends paid to Government (8.2) (12.8)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,127.1        2,468.5       

NET DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN CASH HELD 238.4           (30.1)

CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 157.5           187.6          
Net effect of exchange rate changes 0.4               -              

CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 23.1 396.3           157.5          
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

 1.  OBJECTIVES 

The South Australian Government Financing Authority (SAFA) is a statutory authority constituted as the Under Treasurer under 
the Government Financing Authority Act 1982.  The registered address of SAFA is Level 5, State Administration Centre, 
200 Victoria Square, Adelaide, South Australia 5000. 

SAFA’s business objectives are: 

-   to develop and implement borrowing and investment programs for the benefit of semi-government authorities; 
-   to engage in such other financial and insurance related activities as are determined by the Treasurer of South Australia  

(the Treasurer) to be in the interest of the State; 
-   administer the Government’s insurance and risk management arrangements; 
-   insure, co-insure and reinsure the risks of the Crown; 
-   provide advice on the management of risks of the Crown; and 
-   provide fleet management services to all Government agencies. 

Under the Public Corporations (Playford Centre) (Dissolution and Revocation) Regulations 2012, Playford Centre's assets, 
rights and liabilities transferred to SAFA on 1 July 2012 (refer Note 4). 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a.  Statement of Compliance 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with section 23 of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987. 

The Financial Statements are general purpose financial statements and comply with Australian Accounting Standards, as 
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.  The statements also comply with the requirements of the Treasurer's 
Instructions relating to financial statements by statutory authorities that are issued pursuant to the Public Finance and Audit Act 
1987. 

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted by 
SAFA for the reporting period ending 30 June 2013 are detailed in Note 2(t). 

b.  Basis of Preparation 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting policy statements issued pursuant to section 41 
of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1987, by authority of Treasurer’s Instruction 19 Financial Reporting.  In the interest of public 
accountability and transparency the accounting policy statements require the following note disclosures, which have been 
included in these Financial Statements: 

i) revenues, expenses, financial assets and liabilities where the counterparty/transaction is with an entity within the SA 
Government as at the reporting date, are classified according to their nature.  A threshold of $100,000 for separate 
identification of these items applies; and 

ii) expenses incurred as a result of engaging consultants (as reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income). 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the fair value basis of accounting with the exception of 
Property, Plant and Equipment which is under the historical cost convention. 

The Financial Statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values have been rounded to the nearest hundred 
thousand Australian dollars unless otherwise stated.  Zero represents balances less than fifty thousand dollars. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

c.  Principles of Consolidation 

The Financial Statements for SAFA are not consolidated with its controlled entities.  The exclusion of these entities does not 
have a material impact on the financial results presented.  Note 32 includes details of the entities. 

d.  Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of the Financial Statements to conform with Accounting Standards requires the use of critical accounting 
estimates.  It also requires Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying SAFA’s accounting policies.  
Management has made the following judgements which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
financial statements: 

(i)  Outstanding Claims 

Outstanding insurance claims liabilities are calculated using statistical and/or mathematical methods.  The calculations are 
made by an actuary on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles (refer 
Note 31). 

(ii)  Fair value 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques.  
Management uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions 
existing at the end of each reporting date (refer Note 29(i)). 

e.  Income and Expense Recognition 

SAFA recognises income and expenses when the amounts can be reliably measured, it is probable that the future economic 
benefits will flow to or from SAFA and when specific recognition criteria have been met for each of the activities described 
below. 

(i)  Interest 

Interest income and expense is accrued in accordance with the terms and conditions of the underlying financial instrument 
and premiums and discounts are amortised over the life of the associated borrowings and investments. 

Net realised gains or losses and unrealised gains or losses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer 
Note 19). 

(ii)  Insurance Premium Revenue 

Premium revenue includes amounts charged to policy holders but excludes stamp duty and Goods and Services Tax.  
Premium revenue is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as earned from the date of attachment of risk 
and is recognised evenly over the policy or indemnity period, which is considered to closely approximate the pattern of risks 
underwritten.   

All South Australian Government agencies are required to insure with SAFA unless exempted by the Treasurer.  In those 
circumstances where SAFA considers it more appropriate for some of the risks of a government agency to be placed with 
other insurers, SAFA will arrange for such insurance and will recover the insurance premium from the agency concerned.  
For the purposes of the Financial Statements, these arrangements are referred to as Direct Insurance Placements. 

48



SAFA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 

    

 

 

 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

e.  Income and Expense Recognition (continued) 

(iii)  Leasing and Hire Revenue  

SAFA leases motor vehicles to South Australian Government agencies for a standard lease period of three years and/or 
60,000 kilometres whichever comes first.  By arrangement, some vehicle leases can be extended to five years or 100,000 
kilometres, due to the nature of their business requirements.  The lease to agencies covers registration, compulsory third 
party insurance, scheduled servicing, depreciation, interest costs and a management fee.  Leasing and Hire revenue is 
recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.  The insurance component of the lease is recognised under 
insurance premium in the statement of comprehensive income. 

(iv)  Revenue Recoveries 

Vehicle recoveries include fuel and any unscheduled maintenance of the vehicle over the period of the lease.  Any excessive 
wear and tear costs are recovered from agencies at the end of hire.  Other vehicle recoveries include vehicle fit-outs, parking 
costs, miscellaneous charges and commission on disposal of vehicles. 

Insurance recoveries comprise insurance premiums, excesses on all claims and any recoveries from third parties.  
Recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk 
liabilities are recognised as revenue. 

(v)  Other Revenue 

Fee income in respect of services provided is recognised in the period in which the service is provided. 

(vi)  Insurance Claims Expense 

Insurance claims expense includes the direct and indirect costs of settling claims, claim payments, deductible receipts and 
movements in underlying claim estimates. 

(vii)  Motor Vehicle Expenses 

Direct costs associated with the ownership of the motor vehicle fleet including registration, compulsory third party insurance, 
all maintenance and repair costs, fuel and disposal costs. 

(viii)  Outwards Reinsurance 

Premiums ceded to reinsurers are recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance services 
received.  Accordingly, a portion of the outwards reinsurance premiums may be treated at the end of the reporting period as 
a prepayment.  This program includes the catastrophe reinsurance program which has been effected to safeguard the State 
finances against a very large loss or claim, or a series of large losses or claims in any year under the Government's 
insurance and risk management arrangements. 

(ix)  Indemnity from/(to) the Treasurer 

Insurance activities are segregated into two Funds. The Treasurer has indemnified SAFA for any operating profit or loss 
before tax for any activities relating to Fund 2 (refer Note 22(iii)).  Under these arrangements any profit/loss on Fund 2 are 
recognised as payables to/receivables from the Treasurer.  Any payables to the Treasurer are carried forward to offset future 
operating losses.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2013 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

f.  Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position include Short Term Money Market Deposits and Negotiable 
Discount Securities that are held for liquidity and short term investment purposes (refer Note 5). 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined 
above, but exclude Negotiable Discount Securities and the Working Capital Facility where the securities are for investment 
purposes and not for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

g.  Assets Held for Sale 

Assets are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of their carrying amount or recoverable amount less costs to sell if 
their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.  This condition 
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset’s sale is expected to be completed within one year from 
the date of classification (refer Note 6). 

h.  Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 

All financial assets and liabilities, on recognition, are designated at fair value through profit or loss.  This designation is 
determined on the basis that SAFA manages and evaluates the performance of its financial assets and liabilities on a fair value 
basis in accordance with documented risk management strategies.  Financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives) are 
recorded at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position.  All financial assets and liabilities are revalued to reflect market 
movements with gains or losses, whether realised or unrealised, being recognised immediately in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income (refer Note 19).  Financial assets and liabilities are revalued regularly either at their quoted market price 
or their cash flows are discounted against the relevant yield curve.  

(i)  Investments 

Investments are assets originating outside the South Australian public sector, which are purchased as part of SAFA’s cash 
management products, for liquidity and interest rate risk management and may be sold prior to maturity in response to 
various factors including changes in interest rates and funding requirements of the South Australian public sector.  
Additionally, SAFA may hold investments it has purchased at the direction of the South Australian Government and/or as 
may be determined by the Treasurer to be in the interests of the State of South Australia (refer Note 7).  

(ii)  Loans 

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market (refer 
Note 8). 

(iii)  Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings include At Call Accounts, Cash Management Facility and Term Deposits.  SAFA raises 
short term funds through the issue of Commercial Paper both in the domestic and overseas markets (refer Note 13). 

(iv)  Repurchase Agreements 

Securities sold under an agreement to repurchase remain as an investment whilst the obligation to repurchase is recorded as 
a liability in Deposits and Short Term Borrowings (refer Note 13).  At 30 June 2013 SAFA had no repurchase agreements. 

(v)  Bonds, Notes and Debentures 

Funds are raised through various instruments including bonds, notes and debentures.  All borrowings are raised on an 
unsecured basis (refer Note 14). 
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)  

(vi)  Derivative Instruments 

SAFA utilises derivative instruments (including futures, foreign exchange contracts, forward rate arrangements, foreign 
exchange swaps and interest rate swaps) in fundraising, debt management and client activities.  Derivative instruments are 
used to convert funding costs, facilitate diversification of funding sources, reconfigure interest rate risk profiles and manage 
foreign currency exposures.  Interest receipts and interest payments are accrued on a gross basis and classified as interest 
revenue and interest expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer Notes 11 and 16). 

i.  Assets backing general insurance liabilities 

Assets which back SAFA’s insurance liabilities are those generated through premium revenue.  These assets are invested to 
reflect the nature of the policy liabilities and are comprised of operating cash, cash held on deposit and units invested with 
Funds SA (refer Notes 5 and 7).  In accordance with AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts, SAFA's longer term insurance 
investments with Funds SA are measured at fair value, based on quoted market prices as advised by the fund manager.  
Subsequent measurement is at fair value with any resultant unrealised gains or losses recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  

j.  Reinsurance and Other Recoveries 

Recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid, claims incurred but not reported and unexpired risk liabilities 
are recognised as revenue.  Recoveries receivable are measured as the present value of the expected future receipts, 
calculated on the same basis as the liability for outstanding claims.  The details of inflation and discount rates used are set out 
in Note 31. 

Collectability of recoveries is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

k.  Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

(i)  Depreciation 

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using rates designated to allocate the 
cost over the expected useful life of the asset.  Motor Vehicles are depreciated on a straight line basis for a period of up to 
five years and other Property, Plant and Equipment, in general, is depreciated on a straight line basis for a period of between 
five and ten years (refer Note 9). 

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, during each 
financial year.  Changes in the residual value or expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for prospectively by changing the time period or method, as 
appropriate, which is a change in accounting estimate. 

(ii)  Impairment 

The carrying values of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

l.  Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets represent purchased software and are stated at fair value, which is taken to be cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment. 
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

l.  Intangible Assets (continued) 

(i)  Amortisation 

Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on a straight line basis using rates designated to allocate the cost over the 
expected useful life of the asset.  Software costs are amortised on a straight line basis for a period of up to five years (refer 
Note 10). 

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, each financial 
year.  Where a change to the residual value or useful life of an asset has been identified any impact that may result from this 
change is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which it arises. 

(ii)  Impairment 

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 

m.  Outstanding Claims Liability 

Insurance activities are segregated into two Funds.  Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 1 are measured as the central 
estimate of the present value of the expected future payments for claims incurred with an additional risk margin to allow for 
inherent uncertainty in the central estimate. 

The liability for outstanding claims at balance date comprises: 

-   claims that have been incurred but not paid; 
-   claims incurred but not reported (IBNR);  
-   claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER); and 
-   risk margins;  

together with anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling those claims.  These costs are estimated at four percent of the 
gross outstanding claims liabilities (refer Note 15). 

Liabilities for outstanding claims for Fund 2 are recognised in respect of reported incidents including the anticipated costs of 
settling these claims and a risk margin.  Detail of risk margin rates are disclosed in Note 31. 

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using a risk-free rate, derived from the interest rates on 
Commonwealth Government fixed interest securities with terms to maturity that match, as close as possible, the estimated 
future claim payments.  Details of the inflation and discount rates are disclosed in Note 31.  The impact of the revision of the 
inflation and discount assumptions on the outstanding claims liability is reflected in the financial statements and is disclosed in 
Note 15. 

n.  Other Assets and Liabilities 

Other assets including debtors and fee accruals, other liabilities including interest paid in advance, creditors, expense accruals 
and provisions, are all stated at book value, which is the best estimate of fair value as they are settled within a short period 
(refer Notes 12 and 17). 

o.  Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognised in the Financial Statements at the prevailing exchange rate at each 
reporting date.  Revenue and expense items are translated at the exchange rate current at the date at which those items were 
recognised in the Financial Statements. 
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for the year ended 30 June 2013 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

p.  Employee Benefits 

SAFA does not employ any direct staff, but is assigned staff resources by the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) 
through a Service Level Agreement pursuant to Section 20 of the Government Financing Authority Act 1982.  The responsibility 
to provide for employer contributions to superannuation benefits rests with DTF and for this reason SAFA is not required to 
establish a provision.  DTF meets long service leave liabilities as they fall due. 

q.  Taxation 

Accounting Profits Tax Model 
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 22 Tax Equivalent Payments, SAFA is required to pay the Treasurer an income tax 
equivalent.  The income tax liability is based on the Taxation Equivalent Regime (TER) which applies the accounting profit 
method.  This requires SAFA to apply the corporate income tax rate to the net profit.  The current income tax equivalent liability 
relates to the income tax expense outstanding for the current period. 

Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
SAFA is grouped with DTF, for GST purposes.  Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:  

-   where the GST is not recoverable, it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of 
expense; or 

-   for receivables and payables, which are recognised inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the Australian Taxation Office is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Stamp Duty 
Stamp duty collected as part of insurance premiums are excluded from premium revenue and paid monthly to RevenueSA.  
Stamp duty collected as part of fleet activities are excluded from revenues and remitted to DTF.  Government agencies that are 
part of the TER pay a stamp duty equivalent on leased motor vehicles. 

r.  Business Segments 

SAFA is an individual reporting entity which operates in business segments including Treasury, Insurance and Fleet 
Management. 

s.  Comparatives 

The presentation and classification of items in the Financial Statements are consistent with prior periods except where specific 
accounting standards and/or accounting policy statements have required a change. 

Where presentation or classification of items in the Financial Statements have been amended, comparative figures have been 
adjusted to conform to changes in presentation or classification in these financial statements unless impractical. 
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for the year ended 30 June 2013 

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

t.  New or revised accounting standard and policies 

Certain new and amended accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 
30 June 2013 reporting period.  SAFA’s assessment of the impact of these new and amended standards and interpretations is 
set out below. 

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement.  Fair value measurement guidance contained in individual standards is to be replaced by a 
single set of principles for measuring fair value.  SAFA does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first applied in 
the year ending 30 June 2014. 
 
AASB 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures and AASB 132: Financial Instruments: Presentation, AASB 2012-2 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 7 and AASB 132 focuses on quantitative information regarding recognised 
financial instruments that are offset in the statement of financial position, as well as those recognised financial instruments that 
are subject to master netting arrangements.  SAFA does not expect any financial impact when first applied in the year ended 
30 June 2014. 
 
AASB 9: Financial Instruments.  The main impact of this standard is that it changes the requirements for the classification, 
measurement and disclosure associated with financial assets and liabilities.  SAFA does not expect any financial impact when 
the Standard is first applied in the year ended 30 June 2016. 
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3. Business Segments

2013 Treasury Insurance Fleet Eliminations Total
$m $m $m $m $m

Income 29.4               102.0              96.2               (0.1) 227.5               
Expenses 8.2                 34.3                83.0               (0.1) 125.4               
Profit before tax 21.2               67.7                13.2               -                  102.1               
Income tax equivalent expense 6.4                 20.3                3.9                 -                  30.6                 
Comprehensive result 14.8               47.4                9.3                 -                  71.5                 

Segment assets 19,954.1        466.0              268.4             (383.2) 20,305.3          
Segment liabilities (19,829.4) (336.0) (213.1) 383.2              (19,995.3)

Net Assets 124.7             130.0              55.3               -                  310.0               

2012 Treasury Insurance Fleet Eliminations Total
$m $m $m $m $m

Income 22.9               54.2                             108.0 (0.1) 185.0               
Expenses 7.4                 72.2                               90.6 (0.1) 170.1               
Profit before tax 15.5               (18.0) 17.4                                   -   14.9                 
Income tax equivalent expense 4.7                 (5.4) 5.2                                     -   4.5                   
Comprehensive result 10.8               (12.6)                12.2                     -   10.4                 

Segment assets 19,637.5        447.5                           263.3 (270.6) 20,077.7          
Segment liabilities (19,519.7) (365.0) (216.9) 270.6              (19,831.0)

Net Assets 117.8             82.5                               46.4                     -   246.7               

The Insurance activities are designated into two Funds.  Fund 1 reflects the normal commercial activities of SAFA whilst 
Fund 2 includes all the activities previously conducted through Section 2 of the South Australian Government Insurance 
and Risk Management Fund.  This Fund is used to fund liabilities arising from insurable incidents that occurred prior to 1 
July 1994, claims under the building warranty indemnity reinsurance arrangement with QBE Insurance (Australia) Limited 
(QBE) until 30 June 2013, SGIC residual claims and workers compensation claims previously managed by South 
Australian Asset Management Corporation.  All other non-insurance type risk and liabilities previously funded by Fund 2 
are managed by the relevant government department and funded separately by the agency.

SAFA operates in the following segments:
   -  Treasury - provides funds and financial advice to the South Australian Government,
      Semi-Government Authorities, South Australian Public Sector Financial Institutions and Government 
      agencies.
   -  Insurance  - underwriting several types of general insurance for South Australian Government agencies.
   -  Fleet  - provides comprehensive fleet management services to South Australian Government agencies for
      its passenger and light commercial motor vehicle fleet.
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Playford Centre

SAFA has recognised the following assets and liabilities as a result of these transfers:

2013 2012
Assets $m $m

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.6                     -                       
Other Assets 0.0                     -                       

1.6                     -                       
Liabilities
Other Liabilities 0.2                     -                       

0.2                     -                       

Net Assets Transferred 1.4                     -                       

Under the Public Corporations (Playford Centre) (Dissolution and Revocation) Regulations 2012, Playford Centre's 
assets, rights and liabilities transferred to SAFA on 1 July 2012.

4. Transfer of Administrative Functions
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5. Cash and Cash Equivalents 2013
$m

2012
$m

Cash at Bank 11.0                     8.0                       
Deposits with the Treasurer 45.0                     39.5                     
Short Term Money Market Deposits 340.8                   110.6                   
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1,615.6                1,919.7                
Working Capital Facility 21.0                     16.0                     

Total Cash and Cash equivalents 2,033.4               2,093.8               

6. Assets Held for Sale 2013
$m

2012
$m

Motor Vehicles 5.6                       9.2                       

Total Assets Held for Sale 5.6                      9.2                      

7. Investments 2013
$m

2012
$m

Semi-Government Securities 46.4                     230.0                   
Local Government Securities 5.6                       12.0                     
Bank and Corporate Securities 1,593.4                1,336.1                
Funds SA 430.4                   393.7                   
Paragon Capital Equity Fund No 1 -                       -                       
Subsidiary Investment 0.0                       -                       

Total Investments 2,075.8               1,971.8               

8. Loans 2013
$m

2012
$m

Loans to the Treasurer at Market Rates 23.9                     28.7                     
Loans to the Treasurer at COF/CPSIR 6,653.3                5,922.0                
Loans to the Treasurer at Cash 2,703.0                2,574.3                
Loans to South Australian Government agencies -                       0.1                       
Loans to Public Non Financial Corporations 4,242.6                4,015.7                
Loans to Public Financial Corporations 1,803.2                1,806.4                
Loans to Local Government 172.3                   142.9                   

Total Loans 15,598.3             14,490.1             

The COF/CPSIR loan to the Treasurer is funded through a range of financial assets and liabilities within the Treasurer’s Portfolio.  
Any gains or losses, whether realised or unrealised, on the assets and liabilities in the Treasurer’s Portfolio that fund the loan are 
equally offset by a gain or loss on the COF/CPSIR loan to the Treasurer.  The Loan type changed in August 2012 from the 
previous CPSIR to COF splitting out the cash component to a separate loan.
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9. Property, Plant and Equipment 2013
$m

2012
$m

Plant and Equipment
At cost -                       0.1                       
Accumulated depreciation -                       (0.1)

-                       0.0                       
Motor Vehicles
At cost 255.2                   267.3                   
Accumulated depreciation (60.0) (66.4)
Impairment (0.2) (0.8)

195.0                   200.1                   

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 195.0                  200.1                  

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment

2013
$m

2012
$m

Plant and Equipment
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period -                       0.0                       
Additions -                       -                       
Impairment loss -                       (0.0)
Depreciation expense -                       -                       

-                       -                       

Motor Vehicles
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 200.1                   209.0                   
Additions 95.7                     92.0                     
Assets classified as held for sale (5.6) (9.2)
Disposals (51.8) (44.1)
Depreciation expense (43.4) (47.6)

195.0                   200.1                   

195.0                  200.1                  

10. Intangible Assets 2013
$m

2012
$m

Information Technology
At cost 0.9                       0.4                       
Accumulated amortisation (0.1) -                      
Total Intangible Assets 0.8                      0.4                      

Reconciliation of Information Technology

2013
$m

2012
$m

Information Technology
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 0.4                       -                       
Additions 0.5                       0.4                       
Amortisation expense (0.1) -                       

0.8                      0.4                      
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11. Derivatives Receivable 2013
$m

2012
$m

Foreign Currency Swaps 37.8                     873.8                   
Interest Rate Swaps South Australian Government* 7.0                       11.7                     
Interest Rate Swaps 291.3                   365.9                   

Total Derivatives Receivable 336.1                  1,251.4               

*Note SA Government includes the Treasurer

12. Other Assets 2013
$m

2012
$m

Receivables 1.3                       2.0                       
Receivables - South Australian Government 11.5                     13.7                     
Recoveries 14.6                     15.1                     
Recoveries - South Australian Government -                       -                       
Less:  Allowance for Impairment loss (0.8) (0.8)
Receivables from the Treasurer 26.6                     26.6                     
Prepayments - South Australian Government 2.0                       -                       
Prepayments 3.6                       3.1                       
Sundry Debtors - South Australian Government -                       0.9                       
Sundry Debtors 1.5                       0.3                       

Total Other Assets 60.3                    60.9                    

Movement in the allowance for Impairment loss

2013
$m

2012
$m

Carrying amount at the beginning of the period 0.8                       0.8                       
Provision for impairment recognised during the year 0.0                       -                       
Carrying amount at the end of the period 0.8                      0.8                      

13. Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 2013
$m

2012
$m

At Call Deposits 62.4                     58.8                     
Deposits from the Treasurer 3,143.6                3,143.9                
Deposits from South Australian Government agencies 672.7                   668.4                   
Commercial Paper 2,152.5                2,593.1                

Total Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 6,031.2               6,464.2               

14. Bonds, Notes and Debentures 2013
$m

2012
$m

Select Lines 9,892.3                10,724.1              
Retail Stock 41.2                     50.1                     
Floating Rate Notes 3,012.9                273.8                   
Zero Coupon Bonds 224.4                   213.1                   
Inflation Linked Bonds and Securities 118.5                   151.8                   
Obligation to the Commonwealth Government 245.7                   654.2                   

Total Bonds, Notes and Debentures 13,535.0             12,067.1             

The allowance for impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.  An allowance for 
impairment loss has been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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15. Outstanding Claims 2013
$m

2012
$m

Outstanding Claims - South Australian Government 6.5                       10.0                     
Outstanding Claims 320.8                   354.7                   

Total Outstanding Claims 327.3                  364.7                  

Reconciliation of Movements in Outstanding Claims

Property Liability *
Medical 

Malpractice
$m $m $m

Fund 1
2012 Balance 5.3                     66.4                     228.2                   
Paid (1.2) (10.7) (32.7)
Reported Claims 0.9                     10.7                     11.2                     
IBNR /IBNER Reserve -                    -                       1.9                       
Risk Margin (0.1) 0.4                       (6.5)
Indirect Claims Settlement Reserve -                    0.1                       (1.2)
2013 Balance 4.9                   66.9                    200.9                  

Fund 2
2012 Balance 4.8                     21.1                     38.9                     
Paid (0.9) (2.9) (3.5)
Reported Claims (0.8) 0.7                       1.2                       
IBNR /IBNER Reserve (0.7) (0.6) (0.3)
Risk Margin (0.7) (0.5) (0.7)
Indirect Claims Settlement Reserve (0.1) (0.2) (0.2)
2013 Balance 1.6                   17.6                    35.4                    

Total 6.5                   84.5                    236.3                  

* Includes 'other'.

16. Derivatives Payable 2013
$m

2012
$m

Foreign Currency Swaps 33.9                     874.9                   
Interest Rate Swaps South Australian Government* 0.3                       1.0                       
Interest Rate Swaps 43.5                     52.1                     

Total Derivatives Payable 77.7                    928.0                  

*Note SA Government includes the Treasurer

17. Other Liabilities 2013
$m

2012
$m

Sundry Creditors  - South Australian Government 0.0                       0.1                       
Sundry Creditors 1.3                       4.5                       
Accrued Operating Expenses 2.4                       2.4                       
Payables 1.7                       -                       
Payables  - South Australian Government 2.1                       -                       
Payable Treasurer 8.2                       -                       
Income Tax Equivalent Liability 8.4                       -                       

Total Other Liabilities 24.1                    7.0                      
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18. Revenue Note
2013

$m
2012

$m

Interest Revenue
   External to South Australian Government:

Cash and Cash equivalents 80.8                     87.2                     
Investments 66.6                     81.0                     
Loans 3.9                       6.6                       
Other Assets 467.7                   454.2                   

   Internal to South Australian Government:
Cash and Cash equivalents 1.3                       1.1                       
Loans 621.3                   658.1                   
Other Assets 11.8                     19.2                     

1,253.4               1,307.4               
Less Interest Expense
   External to South Australian Government:

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 42.4                     78.3                     
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 689.3                   582.8                   
Other Liabilities 383.7                   459.4                   

   Internal to South Australian Government:
Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 115.8                   146.3                   
Other Liabilities 8.0                       15.2                     

1,239.2               1,282.0               

Net Interest Revenue 14.2                    25.4                    

Insurance Premium
   External to South Australian Government 3.8                       2.2                       
   Internal to South Australian Government 38.4                     37.7                     

21 42.2                    39.9                    
Leasing and Hire
   Internal to South Australian Government 73.2                     79.9                     

73.2                    79.9                    
Recoveries
   External to South Australian Government 1.2                       6.7                       
   Internal to South Australian Government 22.4                     27.9                     

23.6                    34.6                    
Other
   External to South Australian Government:

Other Revenue 1.2                       1.3                       
Commissions -                       0.6                       
Management Fees -                       -                       

   Internal to South Australian Government:
Other Revenue 0.0                       0.8                       
Management Fees 1.8                       1.9                       

3.0                      4.6                      

Total Revenue 156.2                  184.4                  
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19. Other Gains/(Losses) Note
2013

$m
2012

$m

Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments and Derivatives
   External to South Australian Government:

Realised 357.7                   (16.5)
Unrealised 75.8                     (234.6)

   Internal to South Australian Government:
Realised (317.8) (38.9)
Unrealised (47.5) 283.8                   

68.2                    (6.2)
Net Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
   External to South Australian Government 1.7                       6.8                       

1.7                      6.8                      

Total Other Gains 69.9                    0.6                      

20. Expenses
2013

$m
2012

$m

Insurance Claims
   External to South Australian Government 22.0                     51.9                     
   Internal to South Australian Government (5.4) 10.1                     

21 16.6                    62.0                    
Motor Vehicle
   External to South Australian Government 25.8                     32.7                     
   Internal to South Australian Government 4.0                       2.9                       

29.8                    35.6                    
Reinsurance
   External to South Australian Government 9.2                       8.1                       

21 9.2                      8.1                      
Depreciation and Impairment 
   Internal to South Australian Government 43.5                     47.6                     

43.5                    47.6                    
Operating
   External to South Australian Government:

Program and Debt Management Fees 1.2                       1.0                       
Direct Insurance Placement costs 0.0                       0.1                       
Bad Debts written off 0.1                       -                       
Management Fees 0.8                       -                       
Consultants/Contractors 0.1                       0.0                       
Rent 0.8                       0.8                       
Other 0.1                       0.3                       

   Internal to South Australian Government:
Indemnity to Treasurer 9.4                       1.0                       
Service Level Agreement 13.8                     13.6                     

26.3                    16.8                    

Total Expenses 125.4                  170.1                  

Service Level Agreement insurance costs of $1,338,244 (2011-12: $1,319,933)  have been allocated directly to claims expense. 

A Service Level Agreement operates between SAFA and DTF.  DTF provides services to SAFA to enable SAFA to undertake its 
business activities in a manner so that SAFA may achieve its key outcomes.  DTF provides SAFA with appropriately trained and 
skilled staff along with infrastructure support.  The majority of the fee covers staffing, accommodation, audit and network systems 
expenditure.
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21. Net Claims Incurred and Underwriting Result

Fund 1
In respect of 
Current Year

In respect of 
Prior Years Total

$000 $000 $000

Gross Claims Incurred and Related Expenses Undiscounted 39,333               (13,010) 26,323                 
Other Recoveries Undiscounted (100) (37) (137)
Net Claims Incurred - Undiscounted 39,233               (13,047) 26,186                 

Discount and Discount Movement - Gross Claims Incurred (8,779) 1,009                   (7,770)
Discount and Discount Movement - Other Recoveries (37) (641) (678)
Net Discount Movement (8,816) 368                      (8,448)
Net Claims Incurred 30,417             (12,679) 17,738                

$m
Interest on the 30 June 2012 provision less payments during 2012/13 7.9                      
Release of administration allowance and risk margin in respect of payments during 2012/13 (16.5)
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Experience Deviation from Expected (4.1)

(12.7)

Fund 2
In respect of 
Current Year

In respect of 
Prior Years Total

$000 $000 $000

Gross Claims Incurred and Related Expenses Undiscounted 5,670                 (7,406) (1,736)
Other Recoveries Undiscounted (137) (106) (243)
Net Claims Incurred - Undiscounted 5,533                 (7,512) (1,979)

Discount and Discount Movement - Gross Claims Incurred (647) (401) (1,048)
Discount and Discount Movement - Other Recoveries 16                      (16) -                       
Net Discount Movement (631) (417) (1,048)
Net Claims Incurred 4,902 (7,929) (3,027)

$m
Interest on the 30 June 2012 provision less payments during 2012/13 1.8                      
Release of administration allowance and risk margin in respect of payments during 2012/13 (2.2)
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions and Experience Deviation from Expected (7.5)

(7.9)

2013
$m

2012
$m

Net Earned Premium
Premium Revenue 42.2                     35.0                     
Outwards Reinsurance Expense (9.2) (8.1)

33.0                     26.9                     
Net Claims Incurred
Claims Expense (16.6) (61.5)
Recoveries Income 0.9                       7.2                       
Impairment Expense -                       -                       

(15.7) (54.3)

Underwriting Result Expense 17.3                    (27.4)

The following table provides further information in relation to the net claims incurred cost.  Current year claims relate to risks 
borne in the current reporting period.  Prior period claims relate to a reassessment of the risks borne in all previous reporting 
periods.

The net claims incurred during 2012-13 in respect of claims incurred prior to 30 June 2012 was ($12.7) million which is a result 
of:

The net claims incurred during 2012-13 in respect of claims incurred prior to 30 June 2012 was ($7.9) million which is a result of:
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22. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities

(i) General

(ii) Guarantees

(iii) Treasurer's Indemnity

(iv) Unused Loan Facilities

Under Section 15 of the Government Financing Authority Act, 1982 , all financial obligations incurred or assumed by SAFA are 
guaranteed by the Treasurer on behalf of the State of South Australia.

Origin Energy has indemnified SAFA if SAFA's guarantee to Osborne Cogeneration Pty Ltd in respect of the obligations of two 
subsidiaries of Origin Energy Ltd is called upon by Osborne Cogeneration Pty Ltd under arrangements for the generation of 
electricity at the Osborne Generation Plant.  The Exposure of the guarantee is estimated at $150 million to $200 million.

As at 30 June 2013, SAFA had extended loan facilities that were unutilised totalling $1,036.2 million (2011-12 $794.4 million).

The Treasurer has indemnified SAFA against any profit or loss as a result of activities in the Insurance Fund 2. Given the nature 
of Fund 2 activities, the Treasurer has approved that any operating profit before tax will be nil.  This is achieved by negating the 
operating profit or loss with either a payable to or receivable from the Treasurer. This policy resulted in a payable to the 
Treasurer of $9.4 million for the 2012-13 financial year (2011-12 year a payable to the Treasurer of $1.0 million).

Under an agreement between the Urban Renewal Authority and SAFA (see below), SAFA is indemnified by the Urban Renewal 
Authority for the performance of the Port Waterfront Redevelopment.

Indemnities provided by SAFA have been primarily provided to third parties involved in financing arrangements with SAFA either 
directly or indirectly, other statutory authorities and financial institutions of the State, and relate to financial advantages which are 
expected to be available to those parties or to preserve existing financial advantages.  

By its nature insurance underwriting has liabilities contingent upon certain events occurring that give rise to a claim under the policy 
of insurance.  All known and expected claims in respect of events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period have 
been accounted for in the preparation of these Financial Statements plus an allowance for claims incurred but not reported and 
incurred but not enough reported using IBNR and IBNER calculations.  Many claims require legal input to negotiate suitable 
settlements.  The results of such negotiations may result in liabilities different to those recognised in the Financial Statements.

As at 30 June 2013, SAFA has provided a guarantee to the Urban Renewal Authority for the Port Waterfront Redevelopment.  This
guarantee totalled $5 million.

Under arrangements for the generation of electricity at the Osborne Generation Plant., SAFA has provided a guarantee to Osborne 
Cogeneration Pty Ltd in respect of the obligations of two subsidiaries of Origin Energy Ltd.  The Exposure of the guarantee is 
estimated at $150 million to $200 million. 
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23. Cash Flow Information

Note
2013

$m
2012

$m

1. Reconciliation of Cash:

Cash and cash equivalents disclosed in the Statement of Financial 
Position 5 2,033.4                2,093.8                
Less Negotiable Certificates of Deposit and Working Capital (1,636.6) (1,935.7)
Less fair value component (0.5) (0.6)
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 396.3                  157.5                  

2. Reconciliation of Comprehensive Result to net cash provided by 
operating activities.

Comprehensive result 71.5                     10.4                     

Non-cash items

   Change in net market value of financial instruments (52.6) (47.0)
   Amortisation of financial instruments 87.2                     3.9                       
   Depreciation, Impairment and Bad Debts 43.6                     47.6                     
   Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.7) (6.8)
   Gain on Transfer of Administrative Functions (1.4) -                       
   Bad Debt written off (0.2) -                       

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from transferred 
functions

   (Increase)/Decrease in accrued interest receivable 1.7                       (8.2)
   (Increase)/Decrease in recoveries receivable 0.5                       (1.3)
   (Increase)/Decrease in sundry debtors and other assets 0.1                       (4.0)
   Increase/(Decrease) in accrued interest payable (10.5) 22.2                     
   Increase/(Decrease) in outstanding claims (37.4) 28.8                     
   Increase/(Decrease) in sundry creditors and other liabilities 17.1                     2.3                       

Foreign Currency movement (0.0) 0.0

Net cash provided by operating activities 117.9                  47.9                    

3. Non Cash Financing and Investing Activities

24. Auditor's Remuneration
2013
$000

2012
$000

Audit fees payable to the Auditor-General's Department relating to the 
audit of the financial statements.  No other services were provided by 
the Auditor-General's Department. 225                      184                      
Audit fees are paid through SAFA's SLA with DTF. 225                     184                     

During 2012-13, $322.3 million was adjusted against the Treasurer's debt for book gains arising from debt management activity 
and early retirement of Commonwealth Housing Loans.
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25. Key Management Personnel

(1) Board and Committee members

2013
Members

2012
Members

$0 4                          5                          
Between $30,001 - $40,000 4                          4                          
Between $40,001 - $50,000 1                          1                          
Total Number of Members 9                         10                       

Total Remuneration 183,447$             178,848$             

SAFA Advisory Board and committee members during the 2012-13 financial year were:

Advisory Board Audit Committee
Mr B Rowse* (Presiding Member) Ms Y Sneddon
Ms J Brown Mr L Foster
Mr M Day Ms J Brown (appointed 6 May 2013)
Mr L Foster Mr P Mendo*
Mr C Long
Ms Y Sneddon
Ms A Westley*
Mr G Goddard* (Deputy Member)
Mr P Mendo* (Deputy Member)

(2) Other key management personnel

Mr K Cantley General Manager
Mr T Burfield Director Insurance
Mr C Fowler Director Finance
Mr D Posaner Director Corporate Governance and Planning
Mr J Powell Director Financial Markets and Client Services
Mr D Price Director Fleet

* Those members who are permanently employed under the  Public Sector Act, 2009 , or on similar terms, are not entitled to fees. 

Remuneration of members reflects all costs of performing board/committee member duties including sitting fees, superannuation 
contributions, fringe benefits tax and any other salary sacrifice arrangements.  Amounts paid to a superannuation plan for 
board/committee members in 2012-13 were $15,147 (2011-12: $14,768).  All amounts paid to members are paid through SAFA's 
SLA with DTF.

The following persons also held authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of SAFA or 
subsidiary entities, directly or indirectly during the financial year:

The above are employed by DTF and provided to SAFA through an SLA. Details of their remuneration are included in the DTF 
Financial Statements.

Unless otherwise disclosed, transactions with members are on conditions no more favourable than those that it is reasonable to 
expect the entity would have adopted if dealing with the related party at arm's length in the same circumstances.
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26. Consultants
2013

Consultants
2012

Consultants

Between $50,001 - $100,000 1                          1                          
1                         1                         

Total Consultants expense 102,790$             75,145$               

27. Fiduciary Activities

2013
$m

2012
$m

Liabilities under management 3,710.0                3,574.6                

2013
$m

2012
$m

Total market value of pooled investments 900.0                   852.5                   

28. Unrecognised Contractual Commitments

a) Operating Lease Commitments Receivable

SAFA as a Lessor

Future minimum rentals receivable (excluding GST) under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2013
$m

2012
$m

Motor Vehicle Hire:
Not later than one year 55.1                     61.3                     
Later than one year but not later than five years 35.5                     37.7                     
Total Non-Cancellable Operating Lease Receivables 90.6                    99.0                    

Leases in which SAFA retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased asset are classified as operating 
leases.  Agencies have entered into commercial leases on motor vehicles owned by SAFA.  These leases are for terms up to 
three years, with an option, subject to approval, to extend in six monthly intervals to a maximum of four years for passenger 
vehicles and a maximum term of five years for light commercial vehicles. 

In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $187,391 (2011-12: $382,050) in consultants fees were paid through 
SAFA's SLA with DTF. These consultants are disclosed in DTF's Financial Statements.

SAFA provides asset and liability management services to clients and these financial assets and liabilities are not recognised on 
SAFA's Statement of Financial Position, unless the financial transactions have been undertaken with SAFA as the provider.  SAFA 
manages these assets and liabilities within prescribed risk limits as directed by, or agreed with clients.  SAFA is responsible for 
providing regular financial and management information with respect to its management of client assets and liabilities.  

SAFA provides a pooled investment portfolio to its clients that meet their investment needs.  The Cash Management Facility
comprises cash and short-term money market securities.  The assets and liabilities of this portfolio is reported within SAFA’s 
Statement of Financial Position.
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28. Unrecognised Contractual Commitments (continued)

b) Other Commitments

2013
$m

2012
$m

Software:
Not later than one year 2.8                       -                       
Later than one year but not later than five years 1.9                       -                       
Total Software Commitments 4.7                      -                      

(c) Unrecognised Investment Commitment

The South Australian Government announced in August 2005 that it would invest an amount not exceeding $10 million in a 
private capital equity fund (Paragon Private Equity Fund No 1) established in South Australia and managed by Paragon Advisory 
Pty Ltd.

The Government was committed to invest $1 for every $4 of private sector capital that Paragon Advisory Pty Ltd was able to 
raise up until the closing date of April 2007.  The final capital commitment of the South Australian Government (SAFA) is $0.9 
million.

The Treasurer has indemnified SAFA against any shortfall where the assumption payment SAFA received of $2.2 million is less 
than the aggregate of all capital contributions to the Fund.

SAFA's other commitments relate to software licences and maintenance.
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29. Financial Risk Management

(a) Capital Risk Management

(b) Market risk

Interest Rate Risk

SAFA holds the following derivative instruments:
2013 2012

$m $m

Interest Rate Futures Contracts 2,385.9     (2,201.9)    
Interest Rate Swaps 8,986.4     10,371.6   

Total Face Value 11,372.3   8,169.7     

Price Risk

All risk on the Treasurer’s portfolios is borne directly by the Treasurer.

The following table shows the computed VaR on SAFA’s principal portfolios:
2013 2012

$ $

Funding Portfolio 668,593    152,708    
Liquidity Portfolio 104,743    39,525      
Reinvestment Portfolio 352           1,026        
Cash Management Facility 27,754      33,826      

VaR for the Liquidity Portfolio is managed daily against an approved working limit of $250,000 for 2012-13 (2011-12: $250,000).

SAFA's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk), credit 
risk, liquidity risk and insurance risk. SAFA's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of SAFA.  SAFA uses derivative financial instruments 
such as futures, foreign exchange contracts, forward rate agreements and interest rate swaps to reduce certain risk exposures.

The guidelines within which these risks are undertaken and managed are established under policies approved by the Advisory 
Board, Treasurer and Management guidelines.  SAFA monitors compliance with these policies and constraints by appropriately 
segregating the monitoring from the operating business unit.  Information is summarised and reported daily to Management and 
reported monthly to the Advisory Board.

SAFA manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while exposing its stakeholders to an 
acceptable level of risk.

SAFA uses a variety of methods to measure interest rate risk, including basis point sensitivity, duration/modified duration, and Value-
at-Risk (VaR).  The Treasurer and Under Treasurer approve interest rate risk limits for SAFA’s portfolios.

SAFA uses interest rate futures contracts, interest rate swaps, interest rate options and forward rate agreements to manage interest 
rate risk.  The use of interest rate derivatives enables the management of the volatility of the portfolio of debt and assets without 
requiring transactions in physical securities.

SAFA manages the sensitivity of its treasury portfolios for changes in market risk variables by calculating Value at Risk (VaR) daily 
and monitoring the calculated VaR against pre determined exposure limits. VaR is the calculation of the potential loss due to rate 
movements for any one day.

SAFA calculates VaR using the Historical Simulation method and a two year interest rate horizon.  The daily VaR is assessed at the 
95% confidence level.  VaR for the Funding Portfolio is managed daily against an approved working limit of $750,000 for 2012-13 
(2011-12: $750,000).
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Price Risk (continued)

2013
Investments -10% 10% -10% 10%

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fund 1 377,095 (26,397) 26,397 (26,397) 26,397
Fund 2* 53,275 (3,729) 3,729 (3,729) 3,729
Total 430,370 (30,126) 30,126 (30,126) 30,126

Foreign Exchange Risk

2013 2012
$m $m

Foreign exchange swaps (33.8)        (871.2)       
Foreign exchange contracts* 22.7          17.3          
Total Face Value (11.1)        (853.9)       

EUR GBP NZD SGD
A$000 A$000 A$000 A$000

Less than 1 year
Net Foreign Currency Assets (5.5)        152.0        22.2          (0.1)        
Net Derivatives -         -           -            -         
NET 30.5       (5.5)        152.0        22.2          (0.1)        

Greater than 1 year
Net Foreign Currency Assets -         -         -           -            -         
Net Derivatives -         -         -           -            -         
NET -         -         -           -            -         
Total Exposure 30.5       (5.5)        152.0        22.2          (0.1)        

The following table summarises SAFA's exposure to exchange risk. The value to be received under the currency contracts is 
designed to hedge the exposure to the net foreign currency liabilities:

SAFA has a policy of limiting its foreign currency risk and has limits in place to protect against movements in foreign currency 
exchange rates.

SAFA utilises foreign exchange swaps, foreign exchange and forward exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency 
exposures associated with foreign currency borrowings.

* SAFA has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge exposures arising from the Foreign Exchange Hedging Service provided to 
Public Sector Clients.  These transactions have a nil exposure.

SAFA's total exposure to exchange rate risk (on a net basis) is $199,100 for the year ended 30 June 2013. Had the 
Australian Dollar weakened by 10 per cent against the foreign currencies listed above, the direct impact to SAFA would 
be a gain of approximately $20,000.

USD
A$000

(37,758.8)               
37,789.3                 

Equity

Should future rates vary from those used in the historic rate horizon, profit or losses will vary from the expected results calculated 
under VaR.

The table below shows the impact of a positive or negative 10% movement in the value of investment funds held with Funds SA:

The insurance portfolio is exposed to price risk arising from investments held with Funds SA.  SAFA maintains policies outlining the 
strategies for investment of funds and these policies are reviewed every three years.

* Due to the nature of Fund 2's activities, the Treasurer has approved that any operating profit or loss before tax will be nil.  Therefore any movement 
in the value of Fund 2's investments with Funds SA would be offset by the Treasurer's Indemnity (Refer Note 22).

29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Profit (Post tax)
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(c) Credit Risk

Concentration of Credit Risk by credit rating:

2013 Asset Class AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- NR* Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Loans/Investments 501.9    28.0       -         1,397.8   883.0        612.5        198.0     15,733.0  19,354.2  
Interest Rate Swaps -        -         -         414.8      93.3          67.4          -         11.8         587.3       
Currency Swaps -        -         -         -         -           3.9            -         -           3.9           
Foreign Exchange -        -         -         1.8          -           0.2            -         0.5           2.5           
Total 501.9    28.0       -         1,814.4   976.3        684.0        198.0     15,745.3  19,947.9  

2012 Asset Class AAA AA+ AA AA- A+ A A- NR* Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Loans/Investments 553.4    68.0       15.0       1,237.3   865.0        762.7        100.0     14,485.8  18,087.2  
Interest Rate Swaps -        -         -         408.6      104.1        98.8          -         15.4         626.9       
Currency Swaps -        -         -         -         3.4            3.2            -         -           6.6           
Foreign Exchange -        -         -         (1.7)        -           -            -         2.0           0.3           
Total 553.4    68.0       15.0       1,644.2   972.5        864.7        100.0     14,503.2  18,721.0  

Rating

Rating

SAFA has a 93% (2011-12: 92%) concentration of credit risk in Australia.
By counterparty the main concentration is 78% (2011-12: 77%) to SA Government and 20% (2011-12: 23%) to Banks.

 * NR - not classified under particular ratings.  Includes loans to SA Government of $15,569 million (2011-12: $14,082 million). 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss and associated costs resulting from the failure of a counterparty to meet its financial 
obligations as and when they fall due.

SAFA incurs credit risk through undertaking its core functions of fundraising, debt management, liquidity management and the 
Government's reinsurance program.

SAFA’s dealings in physical securities and other financial contracts, including derivatives, are transacted only with counterparties 
possessing strong to extremely strong safety characteristics regarding timely payment of principal and interest.

Should a participant in the Government's reinsurance program become insolvent or cease trading, the recoveries to which SAFA 
may be entitled could be jeopardised in full or in part, or the timing of any recovery may be subject to an insolvency action.  

To minimise the potential for credit loss, SAFA complies with stringent credit guidelines.  The guidelines are designed to promote 
diversification of credit risk amongst counterparties whilst limiting exposure only to highly rated institutions worldwide.  The credit 
guidelines do not apply to loans to South Australian Government entities.

SAFA measures credit risk for physical securities at face value and the credit risk of derivative transactions using a mark-to-market 
methodology that includes an additional factor to cover potential future adverse market movements.

The majority of SAFA’s lending is to agencies and corporations of the South Australian Government.  Consequently, SAFA’s profit 
does not reflect any component that relates to credit movement for this part of its business.  The profit or loss resulting from credit 
movements for the remainder have been examined and are considered to be immaterial.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(d) Liquidity Risk

2013
< 3 

Months
3 to 12 

Months
1 to 2 
Years

2 to 3 
Years

3 to 4 
Years

4 to 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Assets

1,612.8 430.0 -         -           -            -         -           2,042.8
948.3 514.9 399.1 261.2 1.9 0.1         -           2,125.5

3,412.0 1,591.9 1,646.0 800.2 392.7 1,554.8 8,034.1 17,431.7
29.8 38.3       28.2        7.2            0.1            -         -           103.6

Total 6,002.9 2,575.1 2,073.3 1,068.6 394.7 1,554.9 8,034.1 21,703.6
Liabilities

5,820.5 220.0 -         -           -            -         -           6,040.5
125.4 3,008.8 3,091.7 2,702.9 308.6 2,386.0 3,788.3 15,411.7

12.3 36.9 45.4 47.0 30.4 26.8 128.5 327.3
Total 5,958.2 3,265.7 3,137.1 2,749.9 339.0 2,412.8 3,916.8 21,779.5

Net 44.7 (690.6) (1,063.8) (1,681.3) 55.7 (857.9) 4,117.3 (75.9)

Derivatives 12.0 89.7 79.5 49.7 54.3 45.6 74.2 405.0       

2012
< 3 

Months
3 to 12 

Months
1 to 2 
Years

2 to 3 
Years

3 to 4 
Years

4 to 5 
Years

Over 5 
Years

Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Assets
2,024.4  561.3     -         -           -            -         -           2,585.7    

Investments 418.3     342.1     143.6      402.1        89.7          12.4       189.1       1,597.3    
Loans 3,401.2  1,724.7  1,218.1   1,624.6     514.3        379.5     7,411.9    16,274.3  
Other Assets 13.8       61.3       28.5        8.6            0.4            0.2         -           112.8       

Total 5,857.7  2,689.4  1,390.2   2,035.3     604.4        392.1     7,601.0    20,570.1  
Liabilities

5,685.4  798.2     9.3          279.7        -            -         -           6,772.6    
97.4       2,647.3  2,342.0   2,507.2     631.4        263.7     5,195.6    13,684.6  
20.3       61.0       59.3        36.5          39.1          25.2       123.3       364.7       

Total 5,803.1  3,506.5  2,410.6   2,823.4     670.5        288.9     5,318.9    20,821.9  

Net 54.6 (817.1) (1,020.4) (788.1) (66.1) 103.2 2,282.1 (251.8)

Derivatives (6.7) 80.7 62.7 50.4 29.0 31.7 68.3 316.1

In order to manage liquidity risk, SAFA has in place liquidity management guidelines, which require SAFA to hold a base level of 
liquidity comprising highly marketable financial assets.  Liquid assets include cash, promissory notes, Commonwealth bonds, 
floating rate notes and negotiable discount securities.  The level of liquid financial asset holdings by SAFA on any given day must be 
sufficient to cover the higher of a base liquidity buffer of $350 million or the sum of debt maturities over the next 60 days.  
Adherence to these guidelines enables SAFA to be in a position to meet the forecasted cash demands and any unanticipated 
funding requirements of the South Australian public sector.

SAFA has chosen an approach to minimise medium-term refinancing risks, which involves diversification of physical borrowings 
across the maturity spectrum, diversification of funding sources and the holding of liquid assets to assist in the management of 
refinancing and liquidity risk.

These strategies result in SAFA facing manageable funding demands from financial markets in any given period.  This approach 
assists the maintenance of an orderly market place for SAFA’s securities when refinancing maturing debt obligations.

The Liquidity analysis has been presented on a contractual basis representing the repayment of the principal (face value) and 
interest for financial assets and liabilities and the estimated settlement amount for outstanding claims.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Loans
Other Assets

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings
Bonds, Notes and Debentures
Outstanding Claims

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings
Bonds, Notes and Debentures
Outstanding Claims

Cash and Cash Equivalents
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(e) Insurance Risk

(f) Claims Development table

Medical Malpractice

 Loss

 Year Undiscounted Discount

Ending Paid to Liability Present

30 June 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Date Jun-13 Value

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Prior 70,137 59,074 61,611 83,536 77,687 151,686 86,519 77,851 69,263 82,290 81,440 48,678 32,762 28,517
2002 15,038 13,328 7,581 10,253 9,625 12,742 11,766 11,863 6,974 6,631 10,266 5,293 4,973 4,187
2003 11,619 21,220 17,077 14,533 13,159 13,789 14,108 13,277 12,709 12,009 11,553 348 11,205 9,384
2004 14,397 12,260 9,012 3,355 11,643 7,043 4,336 4,552 2,714 2,109 1,122 987 793
2005 18,826 16,683 12,519 7,752 4,200 3,114 3,963 2,378 1,711 8 1,703 1,379
2006 21,363 17,896 25,892 16,422 7,694 20,793 13,421 13,580 1,631 11,949 9,739
2007 21,513 22,589 13,748 7,366 9,966 8,290 6,837 1 6,836 5,484
2008 22,947 20,345 13,923 11,993 16,582 14,848 2 14,846 11,750
2009 49,922 36,167 29,248 27,700 31,564 9 31,555 24,485
2010 24,134 15,725 13,002 11,367 7 11,360 8,591
2011 17,486 15,471 15,742 3 15,738 11,577
2012 18,749 17,802 2 17,799 12,678
2013 21,967 12 21,955 15,088

TOTALS 240,786 57,116 183,668 143,652

Liability

 Loss

 Year Undiscounted Discount

Ending Paid to Liability Present

30 June 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Date Jun-13 Value

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Prior 20,572 28,823 28,140 33,994 24,491 27,423 40,945 43,057 49,172 50,337 50,969 49,083 1,886 1,820
2002 2,383 2,046 3,402 3,684 3,753 5,543 5,843 5,634 5,890 5,858 5,864 5,505 359 340
2003 4,670 2,792 2,593 2,280 2,237 2,099 2,102 2,239 2,780 3,169 2,780 2,705 76 71
2004 5,078 2,686 3,093 2,733 2,813 2,816 3,814 3,971 4,291 4,832 4,717 115 108
2005 6,283 5,187 4,407 23,291 24,446 24,943 23,879 23,613 23,144 7,004 16,140 15,264
2006 7,922 3,488 2,295 1,961 1,848 1,845 1,911 1,828 826 1,002 931
2007 7,366 3,564 2,106 2,182 2,996 2,552 2,325 1,710 615 569
2008 6,359 3,610 2,137 2,114 1,936 2,907 1,341 1,566 1,442
2009 5,784 2,766 7,445 5,644 4,907 3,667 1,240 1,133
2010 6,705 4,365 3,663 11,386 4,974 6,412 5,803
2011 7,173 5,982 5,158 317 4,841 4,315
2012 8,038 6,749 741 6,009 5,246
2013 6,683 12 6,671 5,690

TOTAL 129,532 82,602 46,932 42,732

Measurement as at 30 June

Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability

Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability

Measurement as at 30 June

SAFA uses a variety of policies and processes to manage the risks associated with its insurance activities.  The most relevant methods 
include:
-   the continual monitoring of the experience and development of claims;
-   premium setting methodologies that reflect the latest development in the risks SAFA's Insurance division is
    insuring;
-   placing reinsurance to protect the capital base against a severe adverse event or a series of severe adverse 
    events; and

The following tables show the development of incurred cost on net undiscounted outstanding claims (Medical Malpractice, Liability and 
Property) relative to the ultimate expected estimate over the ten most recent financial years. Figures provided are net of reinsurance 
and relate to Fund 1.  This information is not disclosed for Fund 2 as it is not considered appropriate for its activities.

-   regular review of the investment strategy for assets backing insurance liabilities.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Property

 Loss

 Year Undiscounted Discount

Ending Paid to Liability Present

30 June 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Date Jun-13 Value

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Prior 7,785 7,668 7,415 7,406 6,955 8,585 8,880 8,879 7,907 7,907 7,907 7,907 0 0
2002 4,041 3,802 3,817 1,737 3,872 1,529 1,588 1,900 2,230 1,674 1,474 1,474 0 0
2003 1,162 853 586 426 668 447 447 447 456 456 456 456 0 0
2004 2,764 2,920 2,444 4,430 4,111 3,975 4,634 3,512 2,880 2,880 2,880 0 0
2005 12,812 4,035 4,027 2,849 2,700 2,718 2,704 2,689 2,689 2,689 0 0
2006 1,667 2,461 1,927 1,604 1,731 2,581 1,933 1,933 1,933 0 0
2007 3,269 2,907 2,666 2,256 2,285 2,142 2,180 2,180 0 0
2008 2,347 2,265 2,390 1,762 1,555 1,543 1,523 20 18
2009 2,777 2,116 1,599 1,689 1,666 1,388 278 263
2010 3,255 1,779 1,543 1,479 1,384 95 90
2011 4,568 3,270 3,060 2,408 652 624
2012 2,683 2,046 1,063 983 941
2013 1,996 26 1,970 1,885

TOTAL 31,309 27,311 3,998 3,821

(g) Concentration Risk

(h) Sensitivity Analysis 

2013

Insurance Fund Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund 1 Fund 2
$000 $000 % %

1. Discount Rate
(a) Increase by 1% 258,362 52,931 -5.1 -3.2
(b) Decrease by 1% 287,236 56,555 5.6 3.5

2. Inflation Rate
(a) Increase by 1% 286,392 56,515 5.2 3.4
(b) Decrease by 1% 259,004 53,162 -4.8 -2.7

3. Superimposed Inflation Rate
(a) Increase by 1% 286,313 56,239 5.2 2.9
(b) Decrease by 1% 259,004 53,162 -4.8 -2.7

4. Other Assumptions
(a) Faster payment pattern - Long Tail & MedMal 272,933 54,737 0.3 0.1
(b) Longer Liability tail 272,432 54,824 0.1 0.3
(c) Longer MedMal tail 272,648 55,264 0.2 1.1

Whilst investments in the Insurance portfolio contains some diversity, by its nature it is geographically concentrated in Adelaide and as 
such is exposed to the risk of potentially material property catastrophes of the State, being earthquake, bushfires, storms and floods. 
The reinsurance program is purchased to provide protection in excess of the retention level, which is $15 million for property, $15 
million for medical malpractice per event and $20 million for liability classes. The Advisory Board annually reviews the appropriateness 
of the retention level. 

SAFA has tested the sensitivity of the results to a change in the key assumptions used in the valuation of outstanding claims liabilities.  
These include changes to the discount and superimposed inflation rates and changes in the expected payment pattern. 

% Change from 
Central 

Present Value of 
Outstanding Liability

The following table sets out the tests carried out and the results:

Cumulative Payments Plus Undiscounted Outstanding Liability

Measurement as at 30 June

SAFA provides the medical indemnity insurance for all public hospitals in South Australia and as such is exposed to the consequences 
of any factor which increases the cost of such cover for example, legal precedents. 
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy

2013

Quoted 
market 
price
(Level 1)

Valuation
technique - 
market
observable 
inputs
(Level 2)

Valuation
technique -
non-market 
observable 
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

$m $m $m $m

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 421.7        1,611.7            -                  2,033.4     
Investments a 38.0          1,762.8            275.0              2,075.8     
Loans b -            8,945.0            6,653.3           15,598.3   
Derivatives Receivable -            336.1               -                  336.1        

Total 459.7        12,655.6          6,928.3           20,043.6   

Financial Liabilities
Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 724.0        5,307.2            -                  6,031.2     
Bonds, Notes and Debentures c 12,854.4   159.6               521.0              13,535.0   
Derivatives Payable -            77.7                 -                  77.7          

Total 13,578.4   5,544.5            521.0              19,643.9   

2012

Quoted 
market 
price
(Level 1)

Valuation
technique - 
market
observable 
inputs
(Level 2)

Valuation
technique -
non-market 
observable 
inputs
(Level 3)

Total

$m $m $m $m

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 158.0        1,935.8            -                  2,093.8     
Investments a 219.0        1,478.9            273.9              1,971.8     
Loans b -            8,568.1            5,922.0           14,490.1   
Derivatives Receivable -            1,251.4            -                  1,251.4     

Total 377.0        13,234.2          6,195.9           19,807.1   

Financial Liabilities
Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 724.0        5,740.2            -                  6,464.2     
Bonds, Notes and Debentures c 10,926.0   201.9               939.2              12,067.1   
Derivatives Payable -            928.0               -                  928.0        

Total 11,650.0   6,870.1            939.2              19,459.3   

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position in 
accordance with the fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the 
significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or    

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the financial asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of significant input into 
the fair value measurement. 
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

Methods used for Valuations in Level 2 and 3:

Reconciliation of movement in Level 3:

2013
At

 30 June 
2012

Total gain/loss 
included in 

income 

statement (1)

Purchases / 
(Settlements)

(Sales) / 
Issues

At 30 
June 
2013

Unrealised 
gain/loss in 

income 
statement 
for assets 
held at 30 
June 2013

$m $m $m $m $m $m
Financial Assets

Investments 273.9 10.8 -                  (9.6) 275.0 1.4
Loans 5,922.0 198.0 1,148.7 (615.4) 6,653.3 (68.3)
Financial Liabilities

Bonds, Notes and Debentures 939.2 (349.0) (69.2) -           521.0 (61.6)

5,256.7 557.8 1,217.9 (625.0) 6,407.3 (5.3)

2012
At 

30 June 
2011

Total gain/loss 
included in 

income 

statement (1)

Purchases / 
(Settlements)

(Sales) / 
Issues

At 30 
June 
2012

Unrealised 
gain/loss in 

income 
statement 
for assets 
held at 30 
June 2012

$m $m $m $m $m $m
Financial Assets

Investments 275.9 11.3 0.1                  (13.4) 273.9 (1.8)
Loans 6,894.2 385.4 1,602.7 (2,960.3) 5,922.0 118.1
Financial Liabilities

Deposits and Short Term Borrowings 97.5 4.7 (102.2) 0.0 0.0 (40.5)
Bonds, Notes and Debentures 827.0 179.4 (67.2) 0.0 939.2 123.5

6,245.6 212.6 1,772.2 (2,973.7) 5,256.7 33.3

(1) Total net gains (or losses) include realised and unrealised fair value movements (refer to note 18 and 19).

Measurement of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) are 
determined using valuation techniques.  SAFA uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market 
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used
to estimate fair value for long-term debt.  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for 
the remaining financial instruments.

All valuations methods remain unchanged compared to the previous reporting period.

a) Investments - Investments categorised as Level 3 are valued utilising swap curves plus a margin. 

b) Loans - The amount in Level 3 represents the COF loan to the Treasurer, which is a loan represented by a pooled number 
of smaller borrowings and investments, that individually are classified as Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, but the 
loan itself is considered inactive in the market.

c) Bonds, Notes and Debentures - The borrowings in Level 3 are considered to be classed as inactive in the market therefore 
there are no quoted or recent historical market transactions. Securities are valued using discount cash flow methods, utilising 
internally-constructed yield curves for Commonwealth Government Securities and SAFA bonds.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 for the year ended 30 June 2013.

SAFA identifies assets and liabilities to have transferred between levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy on the date where changed 
circumstances require a change in the method for determining fair values.  If this date is not known, SAFA deems the transfer
to have occurred at the end of the financial reporting period.

Level 3 Financial Instruments - sensitivity analysis

Whilst the total of Level 3 assets and liabilities is significant, SAFA's potential gains and losses in respect of these instruments 
has been minimised to a level which is not material.

Of the Level 3 assets and liabilities:

- $6.6 billion of assets relates to a loan extended by SAFA to the Treasurer of South Australia. This loan is wholly funded by a
range of financial instruments listed under all levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy.   Any change in value of these assets and
liabilities is passed onto the Treasurer, and hence the effective gain or loss borne by SAFA in relation to fair value movements
of these instruments is nil.  $521 million of Level 3 liabilities are utilised to fund the loan to the Treasurer of South Australia. 

- $275 million of assets relate to a Floating Rate Note.  The valuation methodology applied is based on discounted cash flows, 
utilising base rates and trading margin inputs.  A one basis point decline in base interest rates would result in a gain of $5,390, 
though a one basis point decline in the trading margin would result in a gain of $38,942. 

77



SAFA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 

    

 

 

 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(j) Ageing Analysis

Past due by

1 - 30 days
31 - 60 

days
61 - 90 

days
+91 days Total

$m $m $m $m $m

2013
Past due but not impaired

Receivables 1.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 2.1            
Impaired

Receivables 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.4            
1.2 0.3 0.3 0.7 2.5            

2012
Past due but not impaired

Receivables 0.0 0.3 0.2 0.5 1.0            
Impaired

Receivables - - - 0.3 0.3            
0.0 0.3 0.2 0.8 1.3            

30. Average Statement of Financial Position and Margin Analysis

Average Average Average Average
balance Interest rate balance Interest rate

2013
$m

2013
$m

2013
%

2012
$m

2012
$m

2012
%

Assets

Interest Earning Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,352.9      82.1         3.49%      1,826.4            88.3 4.83%
Investments 1,259.4      66.6         5.29%      1,546.7            81.0 5.24%
Loans 14,790.2    625.2       4.23%    13,128.3          664.7 5.06%
Other Assets -             479.5       -            -                    473.4 -            

Total Assets 18,402.5    1,253.4    4.21%    16,501.4       1,307.4 5.05%

Liabilities

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Deposits and Short Term Borrowings        5,275.7        158.2 3.00%      6,382.3          224.6 3.52%
Bonds, Notes and Debentures      13,597.7        689.3 5.07%    10,212.4          582.8 5.71%
Other Liabilities -                    391.7 -            -                    474.6 -            

Total Liabilities      18,873.4     1,239.2 4.49%    16,594.7       1,282.0 4.87%

The average balances represent the average month end balances and reflect the face value of SAFA’s assets and liabilities.  
The average rate is calculated as interest divided by the average balance of interest bearing assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2013 the amount of Receivables including Impaired Assets that are past due was $2,447,919.

Past due but not impaired receivables are South Australian Government debts considered recoverable regardless of their 
age and impaired receivables are long outstanding debts with none South Australian Government entities where funds are 
deemed irrecoverable.

78



SAFA ANNUAL REPORT 2012-13 

    

 

 

 

  

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2013

31. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Property (Short Tail) Liability (Long Tail) Medical Malpractice

Aviation Property Aviation Liability Medical Malpractice Volunteers
Buildings and Contents Builders Warranty
Consequential Loss General Liability
Fidelity Guarantee Marine Liability
General Property Professional Indemnity
Machinery Breakdown Personal Accident
Marine Property
Motor Vehicle

Percentage risk margin adopted

2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

Medical Malpractice 32 32 25 25
Liability 33 33 23 23
Property 21 21 19 19
Other 33 33 23 23

SAFA writes four broad classes of general insurance: Property, Liability, Other Liability and Medical Malpractice.  Products 
included in these broad classes are detailed below:

The percentage risk margin adopted to reflect the inherent uncertainty of the central estimate was applied at the following 
rates by broad class:

The overall risk margin is determined allowing for the uncertainty of the outstanding claims estimate. Uncertainty is analysed  
taking into account potential uncertainties relating to the actuarial models and assumptions, the quality of the underlying data 
used in the models, the general insurance environment, and the impact of legislative reform.

Other Liability 
(Long Tail)

Fund 1 Fund 2

AASB1023 General Insurance Contracts  does not prescribe a fixed risk margin or probability of sufficiency.  However, it is a 
requirement of the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority guidelines for private sector insurers that a minimum of 75% 
probability of sufficiency be satisfied through the application of the risk margin.  Taking into account the nature of the risks 
underwritten by SAFA and distributions regarded as relevant by the industry for those risks, the application of the above risk 
margins by class result in a 75% probability that the provision for outstanding claims will be sufficient.
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31. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (continued)

Discount/Inflation Rates

2013 2012

For the succeeding year: % %

Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - medical malpractice 3.00 *              3.00 *
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - short tail classes -                  -         
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - long tail classes 3.00 *              3.00 *
Discount rate - medical malpractice 3.70                3.10       
Discount rate - short tail classes 2.80                2.60       
Discount rate - long tail classes 3.10                2.65       

For subsequent years:
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - medical malpractice 3.00 *              3.00 *
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - short tail classes -                  -         
Inflation rate (includes superimposed inflation) - long tail classes 3.00 *              3.00 *
Discount rate - medical malpractice 3.70                3.10       
Discount rate - short tail classes 2.80                2.60       
Discount rate - long tail classes 3.10                2.65       

Fund 1 Fund 2 Fund 1 Fund 2

2013 2013 2012 2012

Years Years Years Years

Medical Malpractice 7.13               2.52           6.16                2.23       
Liability 3.20               5.17           3.56                5.22       
Property 1.67               1.87           1.56                1.60       

Total Outstanding Claims Fund 1 Central 
Estimate

 2013

Risk
Margin

2013

Indirect 
Claims 

Settlement 
Margin

2013 2013
Outstanding Claims $m $m $m $m

247.2             72.3           13.2                332.7     
Discount to Present Value (44.6) (13.0) (2.4) (60.0)
Total Outstanding Claims 202.6           59.3         10.8               272.7     

Weighted average expected term to settlement of outstanding claims from the end of the reporting period

Expected Future Claims Payments (Inflated/Undiscounted)

SAFA used the following discount and inflation assumptions in the measurement of its outstanding claims.

*The valuation methods adopted do not have an explicit inflation assumption, although allowance is made for 
superimposed inflation (3%) for both Medical Malpractice and Long-Tail Classes.
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31. Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (continued)

Change due 
to revision of 
assumptions

Outstanding Claims

2013 
$m

2012 
$m $m

Medical Malpractice 200.9             208.4         (7.5)
Liability 66.9               68.7           (1.8)
Property 4.9                 4.9             (0.0)

   Other -                 -             -                  
Total Outstanding Claims 272.7           282.0       (9.3)

Total Outstanding Claims Fund 2 Central 
Estimate

 2013

Risk
Margin

2013

Indirect 
Claims 

Settlement 
Margin

2013 2013
Outstanding Claims $m $m $m $m

47.0               12.0           2.8                  61.8       
Discount to Present Value (5.4) (1.4) (0.4) (7.2)
Total Outstanding Claims 41.6               10.6           2.4                  54.6       

Change due 
to revision of 
assumptions

Outstanding Claims

2013 
$m

2012 
$m $m

Medical Malpractice 35.4 35.4 0.0
Liability 17.6 18.4 (0.8)
Property 1.6 1.8 (0.2)

Total Outstanding Claims 54.6 55.6 (1.0)

* The outstanding claims positions as at 30 June 2013 and the economic assumptions as at 30 June 2012 have been used to 
identify the impact due to revision of those assumptions.

* The outstanding claims positions as at 30 June 2013 and the economic assumptions as at 30 June 2012 have 
been used to identify the impact due to revision of those assumptions.

Expected Future Claims Payments (Inflated/Undiscounted)

The impact of the revision of the inflation and discount assumptions is detailed below:

The impact of the revision of the inflation and discount assumptions is detailed below:

Balance under 
assumptions *

Balance under 
assumptions *
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32. Subsidiaries

Name of Entity Class of 
shares

2013 2012

Playford Capital Pty Ltd Ordinary 100% 0%

33. Events after the end of the reporting period

Country of 
incorporation

Australia

Playford Capital Pty Ltd became a subsidiary of SAFA on 1 July 2012. The financial statements do not incorporate the 
assets, liabilities and results of the subsidiary in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2(c).

Effective 1 July 2013, SAFA will offer Building Indemnity Insurance within South Australia.  SAFA has also entered into a 
100% quota share arrangement with an external insurance provider to manage these claims.  This is unlikely to have any 
material effect on the operations or the state of affairs of SAFA as the Treasurer has indemnified SAFA for any operating 
profit or loss before tax relating to these activities.

Equity holding

As at 30 June 2013 Playford Capital Pty Ltd had retained earnings of $6.8 million.
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Independent Audit Statement 
South Australian Government Financing Authority 
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Independent Audit Statement (continued) 
South Australian Government Financing Authority 
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APPENDIX A – SAFA CLIENT LISTING AS 
AT 30 JUNE 2013 

 

Client Treasury Insurance Fleet 

Attorney-General’s Department   

    Consumer and Business Services   

    Equal Opportunity Commission   
    Forensic Science SA   
    Guardianship Board   
    Office of Liquor, Gaming & Racing Services   

    Office of the Public Advocate   

    Police Complaints Authority   

    Public Trustee   
    State Ombudsman   
   Tenancies Attorney General’s   

Courts Administration Authority   

     SA Government Radio Network   

Department for Correctional Services   

Operation Flinders Foundation   
Electoral Commission of South Australia   
Legal Services Commission of South Australia   
Police Security Services    
SA Motor Sport Board    
South Australian Fire and Emergency Services Commission (SAFECOM)     
     Country Fire Service    
     South Australian Metropolitan Fire Service    
     State Emergency Service (SES)   
South Australian Police    
   

Department for Communities and Social Inclusion (DCSI)   

Corporate & Disability Services Units   
Disability Services  
Domiciliary Care South Australia    
Housing SA   
    South Australian Housing Trust    
    Office for Community Housing (Housing SA)    
Multicultural SA  
Office for Volunteers   
Office for Women   
Office for Youth   
Parks Community Centre  
   

Department for Education and Child Development (DECD)   
Families SA   
SACE Board of South Australia    
Education and Early Childhood Services Registration and Standards Board   

   

Department of Environment, Water and Natural Resources   

Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges Natural Resources Management Board    
Alinytjara Wilurara Natural Resources Management Board   
Botanic Gardens S&C   

Coorong Lower Lakes & Murray Mouth Projects   

Environment Protection Authority   

Eyre Peninsula Natural Resources Management Board   

Kangaroo Island Natural Resources Management Board   
Murray Darling Basin Authority    
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AT 30 JUNE 2013 

Client Treasury Insurance Fleet 

Northern and Yorke Peninsula Natural Resources Management Board   

Office of Water Security    
Royal Zoological Society of South Australia   
SA Murray-Darling Basin Natural Resources Management Board    
Seasonal Fire Program RC    
South Australian Arid Lands Natural Resources Management Board    
South East Natural Resources Management Board    
South Eastern Water Conservation & Drainage Board    
Stormwater Management Authority   

Zero Waste SA   
    
Department of Further Education, Employment, Science and 
Technology (DFEEST) 

  

Austraining International    
 Bio Innovation SA   
 Education Adelaide   
 TAFE SA   

   

Department for Health and Ageing   

Central Northern Adelaide Health Service (CNAHS) -      
     Glenside Campus   
     Hampstead Centre   
     Lyell McEwin Health Services   

     Modbury Hospital   

     Queen Elizabeth Hospital   

     Royal Adelaide Hospital   
     Women’s and Children’s Hospital   
Children, Youth & Women's Health Service   
Country Health SA   

Hills Mallee Southern Regional Health Service    
Northern Adelaide Hills Health Service   
SA Ambulance Service    
SA Dental Service    
Southern Adelaide Health Service –   

     Flinders Medical Centre    
     Repatriation General Hospital    
   
Department for Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade, Resources and 
Energy 

  
Defence SA    
   

Department of Planning, Transport, and Infrastructure (DPTI)   

Rail Commissioner   
Transport SA   
     Office for Recreation and Sport   
   

Department of the Premier and Cabinet   

     Employee Ombudsman Office   

     Government House   
     Government Publishing SA (GPSA)   
     Industrial Court and Commission   

     Industrial Relations Court & Commission    
     Workers Compensation Tribunal and Health Practitioners Tribunal of SA    
     Office for Ethical Standards & Professional Integrity   
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AT 30 JUNE 2013 

Client Treasury Insurance Fleet 

     Office for Racing   

     Public Sector Injury Management Service   
     Public Sector Workforce Relations   
     SafeWork SA   

     Shared Services SA   

     State Records of South Australia   

Adelaide Cemeteries Authority    
Adelaide Festival Centre Trust   
Adelaide Festival Corporation   
Adelaide Film Festival    
Aboriginal Lands Trust    
Arts SA   

     Art Gallery of South Australia   
     ARTLAB Australia   
     Carrick Hill Estate   
     History Trust of South Australia   

     Public Library Services   

     SA Museum   

     State Library of South Australia   
Australian Children’s Performing Arts Company    
Carclew Youth Arts Centre   
Country Arts SA   

Jam Factory Craft & Design Inc   

South Australian Film Corporation    
State Opera of South Australia   
State Theatre of South Australia    
Tandanya   

    
Department of Primary Industries and Regions    
Dairy Authority of South Australia    
Phylloxera & Grape Industry Board   
SA Dog Fence Board    
SA Research & Development Institute (SARDI)    
Veterinary Surgeons Board of South Australia   

   

Department of Tourism   

South Australian Tourism Commission    
   
Department of Treasury and Finance   
     Corporate Services Ministerial Fleet   

     Electorate Services    
     State Procurement Board    
Distribution Lessor Corporation   
Funds SA   
Generation Lessor Corporation   

Lotteries Commission of South Australia (SA Lotteries)   

Motor Accident Commission   

Treasurer of South Australia   

Transmission Lessor Corporation   
PY Media    
   

Forestry SA   

   

Parliament SA   
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AT 30 JUNE 2013 

Client Treasury Insurance Fleet 

   

SA Water    
 All Water   
Murray Darling Basin Authority (SA Operations)   
   

Other   

Adelaide Convention Centre    
Adelaide Entertainments Corporation    
The Architectural Practice Board of South Australia    
Construction Industry (LSL) Board    
Essential Services Commission of South Australia   

GSL – Custodial Services Pty Ltd – Mount Gambier Prison    
HomeStart Finance   

Independent Gambling Authority    
SA Pathology   
Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme    
Local Government Finance Authority of South Australia    
Pharmacy Regulation Authority of SA    

South Australian Schools Investment Fund    
State Governor’s Establishment    
Surf Life Saving South Australia Inc    
Teacher’s Registration Board of South Australia    
University of South Australia    
Urban Renewal Authority (Renewal SA)   

Volunteer Marine Rescue Organisations    
West Beach Trust   
WorkCover SA    
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APPENDIX B – SAFA STAFF AS AT 
30 JUNE 2013* 

EXECUTIVE  

General Manager 

 

Kevin Cantley 

 
Jacinta John Executive Support Coordinator 
 

Administration 
Maureen Donnell Personal Assistant Legal (PT) 
Bridget Pacifico Legal Support Officer (PT)   
Eva Vratis Business Support Officer (PT)  

Kevin Winfield Business Support Officer  

 

FINANCIAL MARKETS AND CLIENT SERVICES  

Director 

 

Financial Markets  

 

 

Analytics  

 

 

Client Services 

John Powell  
 
Andrew Kennedy Manager, Financial Markets 
David Hocking Cash Management Dealer 
 
Robert Arnold Senior Quantitative Analyst 
Conway Teh Advisory Analyst(PT) 

 
Don Munro Manager, Client & Advisory Services 
 

FLEET  

Director 

 

Fleet Management  and Vehicle 
Disposal 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Accident Management 
 

 

 

 
 

Short-Term Hire 

 

 
 
 

 

David Price 
 
Glenn Gaisford Senior Manager, Fleet 
Pauline Bilsborough Senior Contract Manager – Fleet Management 
John Batageli Senior Contract Manager – Vehicle Disposal 
Martin Griggs Business Analyst 
Evan Makris Senior Contracts Officer 
Krystin McInerney Administration Assistant 
Severina O’Dwyer Finance Officer 
Bruce Davidson Rectification  Officer 
 
Steve Daminato Manager, Accident Management 
Elisa Centofanti Accident Claims Officer 
John Lunn Accident Claims Officer 
Orlando Russo   Vehicle Assessor 
Wally Ferber Vehicle Assessor 
 
Margaret Forbes Manager, Government Pool 
Rose Carter Customer Services Officer 
Daniel Clayton Customer Services Officer 
James Johnson Car Pool Attendant 
Darryl Francis Car Pool Attendant 
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APPENDIX B – SAFA STAFF AS AT 
30 JUNE 2013* 

INSURANCE  

Director 

 

Claims Management 

 

 

 

 

 

Underwriting 

 

 

 

Risk Management 

Tim Burfield 

 

Deborah Machell Claims Manager 
Helen Goodhew Senior Claims Officer 
Andrew Grant Senior Claims Officer 
Adam Sandford Senior Claims Officer 
Jenny White  Senior Claims Officer 
 
Liane Lawton Underwriting Manager   
Tricia Ielasi Senior Underwriting Assistant (PT) 
Tara McAvaney Assistant Underwriter (PT) 

 
Darryl Bruhn Risk Management Co-ordinator 
 

FINANCE 
 

Director 

 

Financial and Management 
Reporting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Operations 

 

 

 

Business Systems 

 

 
 
 
 

Systems and Process Improvement 

 

 

 

 

 

Craig Fowler  

 
Trisca Price Manager, Financial & Management Reporting (PT)  
Andrew Bettison Senior Financial Accountant 
Michael Goudas Senior Treasury Accountant 
Katherine  
Hanuszewicz Senior Financial Accountant (EL) 

Michelle Pike Senior Financial Accountant (PT) 

Kylie Richards Senior Finance Officer 
Annie Wong Senior Financial Accountant 
Nathan Porter Acting Treasury Systems Accountant 

 Charlie Noujaim Finance Officer 
Skye Launer Finance Officer(EL) 
Anne Paterson Finance Officer(CO) 

Melissa Crisafi Treasury Accountant 
 

Tom Green Acting Manager, Operations 
Nigel Harvey Business Analyst 
Jennifer Hennessy Senior Settlements Officer (PT) 
 

Antony Kimber Manager, Business Systems 
Rex Whitford Quantum System Manager (CO) 

Michael Darvill Systems Administrator 
Andrew Robinson Senior Business Analyst(CO) (PT) 

John Wong Senior Systems  Administrator(CO) 

 
Tania Milohis Project Manager, Systems and Process Improvement 
Paul Daly Business Analyst 
Ben Kelly Business Analyst 
Lisa Gergos Business Analyst(PT) 
Michelle Van Oss Business Analyst (PT) 
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APPENDIX B – SAFA STAFF AS AT 
30 JUNE 2013* 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & PLANNING 

Director 

 

Governance and Planning 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Industry Assistance Contract  

Management 

 

 

 

 

Legal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance 

 

 

 

 

Playford Capital 

 

 

 

David Posaner  
 
Mike Vroulis Senior Manager, Governance & Planning 
John Strawbridge Manager, Governance and Corporate Projects 
Lisa Ellul Senior Project Officer (PT) 
Reshma Machin Senior Policy Officer (PT) 
Kathy Yankoff Policy Officer  

Lorraine Giesecke Project Officer, Records Management 
 
Rebecca Wigglesworth Principal Contract Manager (PT) 
Elisabeth Prosser Senior Contract Manager 
Ben Sara Contract Manager (PT) 
Caroline Lower Contract Manager (PT)      
Brent Wade Contract Manager 
 

Virginia Martindale Managing Legal Counsel - Insurance (OP) 
Rob Fuller Managing Legal Counsel - Finance (OP) 
Audrey Bosboom Legal Counsel(OP) 
Shaun Clough Legal Counsel (OP) 

Kerry Davey Legal Counsel(OP) (EL) 
Jessica Cibich Legal Counsel (OP) 

 

Ver Prado Manager, Audit and Compliance 
Shakhlo Rasulova Senior Audit and Compliance Officer  
Jayson Cuaresma Audit and Compliance Officer (CO) 
Leila Mirovitskaya Audit and Compliance Officer  (EL) 

 

Amanda Heyworth   
Andrew Bollen 

 

(CO) - contractor (EL) - on extended leave (PT) - part-time (OP) - out posted from Crown Solicitor’s Office 

*  Under the terms and conditions of a Service Level Agreement, SAFA is staffed by employees of the DTF assigned to SAFA. 
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APPENDIX C – DEALER PANEL 
MEMBERS  
 
 
 
SAFA Inscribed Stock Dealer Panel 
 
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 
Citigroup Global Markets Australia Limited 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 
Deutsche Bank AG - Australian Branch 
HSBC Bank Australia Limited 
JPMorgan Australia Limited 
National Australia Bank Limited 
Nomura Australia Limited 
RBC DS Global Markets 
Toronto Dominion Bank 
UBS Australia Limited 
Westpac Banking Corporation 
Barclays Bank PLC 
 
 
 
SAFA Commercial Paper Dealer Panel 
 
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 
Deutsche Bank AG - Australian Branch 
Macquarie Bank Limited 
National Australia Bank Limited 
Westpac Banking Corporation 
 
 
 
Euro Commercial Paper Program Panel 
 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 
Barclays Capital 
Citigroup Global Markets 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia, Hong Kong Branch 
Deutsche Bank AG – Australian Branch 
ING Bank NV 
National Australia Bank Limited 
RBC Capital Markets Ltd 
RBS Group (Australia) Ltd 
UBS Investment Bank 
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APPENDIX D – SUMMARY OF THE 
SOUTH AUSTRALIAN 
GOVERNMENT’S CATASTROPHE 
REINSURANCE PROGRAM 2012-13 

 
 

Industrial Special Risks (Property and Business Interruption) 

Level of cover $750m
Each and every event deductible   $1m
Aggregate annual deductible for losses in excess of $1m each and every event   $15m

 

Public and Products Liability 

Level of cover $500m
Each and every event deductible - local government claims $3m
                                                     - other claims $1m
Aggregate annual deductible for losses in excess of $1m/$3m each and every 
event 

$20m

 

Professional Indemnity 

Level of cover $300m
Each and every event deductible - local government claims $3m
                                                     - other claims $1m
Aggregate annual deductible for losses in excess of $1m/$3m each and every 
event 

$20m

 

Directors and Officers Liability 

Level of cover $75m
Each and every event deductible - local government claims $3m
                                                     - other claims $1m
Aggregate annual deductible for losses in excess of $1m/$3m each and every 
event 

$20m

 

Medical Malpractice 

Level of cover $100m
Each and every event deductible   $15m
No aggregate annual deductible   

 

Aviation Liability 

Level of cover $500m
Each and every event deductible $5 000
 
Terrorism Liability 
Level of cover $225m
Each and every event deductible $25m
 
m = million 
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APPENDIX E – KEY SOUTH 
AUSTRALIAN LEGISLATION 
ASSOCIATED WITH SAFA 
 
 

 
 

 

Administrative Arrangements Act 1994  

Government Financing Authority Act 1982 

Government Financing Authority (Insurance) Amendment Act 2006 

Work Health and Safety Act 2012 

Public Corporations Act 1993 

Public Corporations (Dissolution of South Australian Government Captive Insurance 
Corporation) Regulations 2006 

Public Corporations (Playford Centre) (Dissolution and Revocation) Regulations 2012 

Public Finance and Audit Act 1987 

Public Sector Act 2009 

State Procurement Act 2004 

State Records Act 1997 
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APPENDIX F – PLAYFORD CAPITAL 
PTY LTD - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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GLOSSARY OF ABBREVIATIONS 
 

 
 

Advisory Board SAFA Advisory Board 
AIFRS Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 
ANCAP Australasian New Car Assessment Program 
APRA Australian Prudential Regulation Authority 
BBSW Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate 
bp basis point 
CMF Cash Management Facility 
COF Cost of Funds 
CPI Consumer Price Index 
DECD Department for Education and Child Development 
DTF Department of Treasury and Finance 
ECP Euro Commercial Paper 
Fleet SA Fleet South Australia 
FRA Forward Rate Agreement 
FRN Floating Rate Note 
FTE Full-time equivalent 
Fund 1 SAICORP Insurance Fund 1 
Fund 2 SAICORP Insurance Fund 2 
Fund 3 SAICORP Insurance Fund 3 
FX Foreign Exchange 
GST Goods & Services Tax 
IIAF Industry Investment Attraction Fund 
IIFF Innovation Investment Follow-on Fund  
IIFSA  Innovation and Investment Fund for South Australia 
LeasePlan LeasePlan Australia Limited 
NII Net Interest Income 
pa per annum 
Pickles Pickles Auctions Pty Ltd 
PN Promissory Notes 
QBE QBE Insurance Group Limited 
RBA Reserve Bank of Australia 
RDIF Regional Development Infrastructure Fund 
RMIA Risk Management Institution of Australasia 
RMBS Residential Mortgage Backed Securities 
SAFA South Australian Government Financing Authority 
SAFSA Structural Adjustment Fund for South Australia 
SAICORP South Australian Government Captive Insurance Corporation 
SAIIF South Australia Innovation and Investment Fund 

SA Water South Australian Water Corporation 
SBDF Small Business Development Fund 
SGIC State Government Insurance Commission 
S&P Standard & Poor’s 
SISF Strategic Industry Support Fund 
TER Tax Equivalent Regime 
Treasurer Treasurer of South Australia 
US United States 
VaR Value-at-Risk 
WH&S Work Health and Safety  
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South Australian Government Financing Authority 
Level 5 

State Administration Centre 

200 Victoria Square 

ADELAIDE   South Australia 5000 

GPO Box 1045 

ADELAIDE   South Australia 5001 
 
Telephone: 618 8226 9444 

Facsimiles: 618 811 51364     618 811 51363 618 811 51365  

ABN: 75 277 967 856 

E-mail: Mail.SAFA@sa.gov.auU 

Internet: http://www.safa.sa.gov.auU 
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Level 5 

State Administration Centre 
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Fleet SA 
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State Administration Centre 
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Telephone: 618 8226 5800 

Facsimile: 618 8226 7339   

ABN: 12 804 408 573 

E-mail: fleetsaadmin@sa.gov.au 

Internet: http://www.fleet.sa.gov.au 
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Internet: www.linkmarketservices.com.au 

 Locked Bag A14 

 SYDNEY SOUTH    NSW   1235 

 

Investment-Linked Migration and Investor Retirement Visa Bonds 

Telephone: 618 8226 9450 

Facsimile: 618 8226 9478 

 

ISSN 1326-7132 
 
Printer:    South Australian Government Financing Authority  

116


	COVER PAGE
	CONTENTS
	TRANSMITTAL LETTER
	GM's OVERVIEW
	SAFA's ROLE
	FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	TREASURY SERVICES
	Fundraising
	Client Lending
	Ivestment Products
	Client Portfolio Management
	FX Hedging Services
	Advisory Services
	Other Services
	Treasury Performance

	INSURANCE SERVICES
	Government Cover
	Catastrophe Reinsurance
	Risk Management Advice
	Insurance Funds
	Insurance Performance

	FLEET SERVICES
	Vehicle Leasing
	Vehicle Disposal
	Fleet Statistics
	Fleet Performance

	OTHER BUSINESS SERVICES
	SUBSIDIARIES
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
	Governing Legislation
	Advisory Board
	Internal Controls

	RISK MANAGEMENT
	ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
	Operational Structure
	Staffing

	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	Financial Contents Page
	Financial Position
	Comprehensive Income
	Changes in Equity
	Cashflow Statement
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Certification
	Audit Statement

	APPX A - CLIENTS
	APPX B - STAFF
	APPX C - DEALER PANEL
	APPX D - CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE
	APPX E - LEGISLATION
	APPX F - PLAYFORD CAPITAL FINANCIALS
	Director's Report
	Certification
	Comprehensive Income
	Financial Position
	Changes in Equity
	Cashflow Statement
	Notes to Financials

	GLOSSARY
	CONTACTS



